
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

SEPTEMBER 13, 2021

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 13th of September, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in
the City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street,
Navasota, Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Railroad Street Drainage project update;

(b) Capital Improvements Project Report;

(c) Arts Council Quarterly report;

(d) Proclamation - National Gear Up Week;

(e) Board and Commission update; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized
or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Consideration and possible action on request from Christian Community Services
for assistance with utility payments for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.



6. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and
testimony regarding a specific use permit application submitted to the City of
Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West
Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit
application requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not
listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is
legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.

7. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 977-21,
approving a specific use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by
Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave,
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application
requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed under
Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is legally described
as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.

8. Consideration and possible action on engineering agreement with Strand
Associates for the 2021 Gas System Model Development.

9. Consideration and possible action on approval of engineering agreement with
Strand Associates for the 2021 Hollister Gas Regulator Station Replacement
Project.

10. Public Hearing on the proposed budget for the City of Navasota for Fiscal Year
2021-2022.

11. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 975-21,
adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending
September 30, 2022.

12. Public Hearing on proposal to increase the tax rate for 2021.

.

13. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 976-21,
levying taxes for the City of Navasota and establishing the rate of taxation and the
percentage of actual value of the property taxes to be used for and during the
2021 tax year.

14. Consideration and possible action on ratifying the tax increase reflected in the
budget for FY 2021-2022.

15. Consideration and possible action on purchasing an ad in the Insight Magazine
using Hotel/Motel funds.

16. Consideration and possible action on the Assessment/Collection contract for the
taxing year 2021 with the Grimes County Central Appraisal District.



17. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of August 2021;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of August
2021;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 972-
21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by Paul Hammock for a
42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 973-
21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Section
13.02.011 Extension of Main Lines and Service Lines, of the code of ordinances,
City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purpose of adopting
warranty regulations on public improvements dedicated to the City; and

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 974-
21, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article II Districts,
District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New Uses, and Compliance, 2.5
Compliance Required, of the code of ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas,
adding public improvement warranty provisions.

18. Executive Session:  The City Council will meet in Executive Session as permitted
by Section 551.074, Texas Government Code - Personnel Matters - Discussion
concerning the retiring City Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues,
and potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating the transition
to a new City Manager. 

19. Reconvene in open session.  

20. Consideration and possible action concerning the retiring City Manager's
Employment Agreement and related issues, and potential roles/duties of the
retiring City Manager in facilitating the transition to a new City Manager.

21. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 10TH OF SEPTEMBER, 2021

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 10th of September, 2021 at 10:18 AM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 10TH OF SEPTEMBER, 2021

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

9-13-21 
 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

Railroad Street Drainage project update – Staff will provide an update on the drainage 

project on Railroad Street.  

 

Capital Improvement Project Report – Bleyl Engineering will provide a report on the 

progress of the Capital Improvement Project. 

 

Arts Council Quarterly report – The Arts Council Quarterly report is attached for review. 

 

Proclamation - National Gear Up Week 

 

5.  Consideration and possible action on request from Christian Community Services 

for assistance with utility payments for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

 The Christian Community Services will present their annual report and request funding 

for the upcoming fiscal year.  The City credits their utility account for $200 monthly.  

Most months they do not exceed the $200. 

 

6.  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and 

testimony regarding a specific use permit application submitted to the City of 

Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West 

Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit 

application requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not 

listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is 

legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12. 

 Mr. Komarzec is requesting a specific use permit for a food truck park located at the old 

Ruthies BBQ location.  The owner has been improving the buildings on the property and 

cleaning up the location. 

 

7.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 977-21, 

approving a specific use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by 

Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application 

requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed under 

Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is legally described 

as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12. 



 Mr. Komarzec is requesting a specific use permit for a food truck park located at the old 

Ruthies BBQ location.  The owner has been improving the buildings on the property and 

cleaning up the location. 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on engineering agreement with Strand Associates 

for the 2021 Gas System Model Development. 

 The city is experiencing considerable growth which is placing a demand on several 

utilities.  The gas system during the winter has experienced low pressure in parts of town, 

and staff feels we need to have the system evaluated to insure that we have adequate 

pressure and volume and determine where improvements are needed. 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on approval of engineering agreement with 

Strand Associates for the 2021 Hollister Gas Regulator Station Replacement 

Project. 

 The Hollister regulator station is old and constructed with undersized piping, and is 

located very close to the street which causes concern from vehicle damage.  The station 

feeds the west side of town which is seeing considerable growth, and we have had some 

pressure issues in areas of town it serves.  Replacement of the regulator station would 

improve the feed on the west side and improve safety. 

 

10.  Public Hearing on the proposed budget for the City of Navasota for Fiscal Year 

2021-2022. 

 The proposed budget includes revenues of $35,639,407 and expenses of $35,639,406.  

The budget includes several projects including a street improvement project, a downtown 

streetscape project, vehicles and other equipment as well as a 3% cost of living increase 

for staff. 

 

11.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 975-21, 

adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending 

September 30, 2022. 

 The proposed budget includes revenues of $35,639,407 and expenses of $35,639,406.  

The budget includes several projects including a street improvement project, a downtown 

streetscape project, vehicles and other equipment as well as a 3% cost of living increase 

for staff. 

 

12.  Public Hearing on proposal to increase the tax rate for 2021. 

The proposed tax rate is the same rate as last year, $0.5693 per $100 valuation. The rate 

is expected to generate $2,893,736. 

 

 

13.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 976-21, 

levying taxes for the City of Navasota and establishing the rate of taxation and the 

percentage of actual value of the property taxes to be used for and during the 2021 

tax year. 

 The proposed tax rate is the same rate as last year, $0.5693 per $100 valuation. The rate 

is expected to generate $2,893,736. 

 

 

 

 



14.  Consideration and possible action on ratifying the tax increase reflected in the 

budget for FY 2021-2022. 

 Texas Statute requires a city council that adopts a budget that requires more revenue from 

property taxes than in the previous year is required to ratify the tax rate.  The vote for this 

item requires a show of hands. 

 

15.  Consideration and possible action on purchasing an ad in the Insight Magazine 

using Hotel/Motel funds. 

 Insight Magazine will be publishing 10 issues that will include hotels and B&B’s.  The 

City can purchase the ads through hotel occupancy tax funds if they so choose.  The cost 

to advertise for all 5 Navasota hotels is $1,250. 

 

16.  Consideration and possible action on the Assessment/Collection contract for the 

taxing year 2021 with the Grimes County Central Appraisal District. 

 The City contracts annually with the Grimes County Central Appraisal District to 

perform tax assessment and collections.  The fees for this year are $14,382 for Tax 

Assessment/Collection and $68,831 for Appraisals. 

  

17.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. 

No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City 

Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular 

agenda. 

Consent Items are: 

 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of August 2021; 

 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of August 

2021; 

 

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 972-

21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by Paul Hammock for a 

42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes 

County, Texas; 

 

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 973-

21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Section 

13.02.011 Extension of Main Lines and Service Lines, of the code of ordinances, City 

of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purpose of adopting warranty 

regulations on public improvements dedicated to the City; and 

 

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 974-

21, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article II Districts, 

District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New Uses, and Compliance, 2.5 

Compliance Required, of the code of ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, 

adding public improvement warranty provisions. 

 

18.  Executive Session:  The City Council will meet in Executive Session as permitted by 

Section 551.074, Texas Government Code - Personnel Matters - Discussion 

concerning the retiring City Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues, 



and potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating the transition 

to a new City Manager.  

 

19.  Reconvene in open session.   

 

20.  Consideration and possible action concerning the retiring City Manager's 

Employment Agreement and related issues, and potential roles/duties of the retiring 

City Manager in facilitating the transition to a new City Manager. 

 

21.  Adjourn. 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

September 13th    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

September 16th – 17th    Brad Vacation 

     Whitharral  

 

September 27th    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

October 6th- 8th   TML Annual Conference 

     Houston, Texas 

 

October 11th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

October 14th- 18th    Brad Vacation  

     Florida 

 

October 25th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat May 19, 2020 2020 – 2021  

 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 

(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 

The Management Connection, Inc. provided Professional Facilitation to the City of Navasota 

City Council on May 19th, 2020. This document captures the discussion outcomes and Council’s 

direction to the staff for FY 2020 – 2021. 

 

 

Retreat Summary 

Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 9:20am. The City Manager reviewed the 

accomplishments made based on Council’s direction at the last Retreat in September 2019. A 

staff member from each department shared a SWOT Analysis of the department based on 

current circumstances and highlighted a few key areas they wanted Council think about as 

they move forward. The Council provided direction on multiple items from the agenda. The 

direction from the Council is provided below. 

 

City Council Direction for 2020 - 2021 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 

Completion 

1. The Council directed the City Manager not to 

lay off anyone from the workforce due to the 

current environment. The Council expressed 

concern that the staff was already shorthanded 

and operating with a heavy workload. 

a. The City Manager was asked to explore 

options on how to strengthen the 

workforce by adding positions. The City 

Manager is to conduct a Cost/Benefit 

Analysis for positions needed. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

2. The Fire Chief will provide the Council with a 

monetary amount of what it will take to move 

part-time staff to full-time staff. 

6/19/20 Fire Chief  

3. The City Manager and Fire Chief will consider 2020 – City Manager,  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

options for the new Fire Station. 

a. Look into possible options to finance the 

new station with low interest rates. 

b. Look into building a new station with 

partnerships, i.e. the animal shelter. 

c. Staffing is the priority for the Fire 

Department.  

2021  Fire Chief 

4. The City Staff gave a comprehensive 

explanation of the City’s Financial Picture. The 

Council complimented the Staff’s ability to 

manage the City’s finances in an efficient and 

effective manner. The Council also 

acknowledged that their perspective of the 

finances had changed from possibly being in 

trouble to having a good handle on them. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

5. The Council agreed on the criteria in which the 

City’s Reserve funds may be used: 

a. The funds should be left untouched 

unless they are absolutely needed. 

b. The funds should be used as leverage for 

other things during this time. 

c. Per the Financial Policy, the Reserve 

funds may be used in one or a 

combination of the following ways: 

i. Emergencies; 

ii. One-time expenditures that do not 

increase reoccurring operating 

costs 

iii. Major capital purchases 

iv. Start-up expenditures for new 

programs undertaken at mid-year, 

provided such action is considered 

in the context of multiyear 

projections or program revenues 

and expenditures 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

6. The City Staff will consider opportunities to 

capitalize on the low interest rates and use 

them to the City’s advantage. The Staff will 

present these opportunities to Council. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

7. The City Staff gave a detailed update on the 2020 – City Staff  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

Appraisal District. This gave the Council a clear 

picture of what to expect. 

2021 

8. The Mayor and City Manager will create a 

Legislative Agenda and present it to the 

Council. 

2020 – 

2021 

Mayor, City 

Manager 
 

9. The Council directed the City Manager to 

continue the Downtown Plan as he explained it. 

The City Manager is to leverage private/public 

partnerships in completing the project. 

a. The Downtown Plan addressed the 

streetscapes, traffic patterns, quiet zone, 

cross walk, building construction and 

financial resources. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

10. The Council discussed the pros and cons of 

being part of the BCS MSA. The Council and 

Staff did not identify any real benefit of being 

part of the MSA. In fact, there was more 

agreement as to why the City should not be part 

of the MSA. The Council decided to continue to 

monitor the MSA. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

11. The City Staff will continue to strengthen 

partnerships with other entities. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

12. The City Manager will lead the staff in 

incorporating their Department SWOT Analysis 

into an Action Plan for 2020 – 2021. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Railroad Street Drainage project update;

(b) Capital Improvements Project Report;

(c) Arts Council Quarterly report;

(d) Proclamation - National Gear Up Week;

(e) Board and Commission update; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

Brad Stafford, City Manager



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Arts Council Quarterly Report
2. Proclamation

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629814701x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631033940x_at.pdf


Total

ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         10100 Well's Fargo Business Checking 15,946.08  

         10101 VB - Checking 178,414.19  

         10102 VB - Savings 100,162.64  

         10125 PayPal 14,217.08  

         10200 Prosperity - ABC 424,772.17  

         10400 American Momentum Money Market 134,442.61  

         10450 American Funds 50,892.40  

         10950 Cash in Drawer 634.77  

         12300 Community Foundation of BV 10,238.29  

      Total Bank Accounts $                                                 929,720.23  

      Accounts Receivable

         11001 Accounts Receivable 6,037.24  

            11200 Pledges Receivable 72,500.00  

            11205 Discount on Pledge Receivable 0.00  

            11400 Grants Receivable 0.00  

            11500 Contributions Receivable 70,000.00  

         Total 11001 Accounts Receivable $                                                 148,537.24  

      Total Accounts Receivable $                                                 148,537.24  

      Other Current Assets

         12000 Undeposited Funds 1,493.60  

         12100 Inventory Asset 0.00  

         12500 Art Inventory 14,262.00  

         13000 Prepaid Expenses 0.00  

         1692 Prepaid Insurance 0.00  

         1693 Prepaid Advertising 0.00  

         Payroll Refunds 0.00  

      Total Other Current Assets $                                                   15,755.60  

   Total Current Assets $                                              1,094,013.07  

   Fixed Assets

      14000 Property & Equipment

         14100 Furniture and Equipment 158,097.00  

         14200 Buildings & Improvements 1,643,477.00  

         14300 Permanent Collection 657,023.00  

         14400 Texas Gallery Improvements 0.00  

         14500 Land 392,430.00  

         14900 Accum Depreciation -129,443.00  

      Total 14000 Property & Equipment $                                              2,721,584.00  

      14101 New Building 0.00  

The Arts Council of Brazos Valley

Statement of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2021



      14101.1 Building Improvements 0.00  

      14102  Credit to Building Cost 0.00  

      16000 Construction in Progress 0.00  

   Total Fixed Assets $                                              2,721,584.00  

   Other Assets

      13500 Prepaid Rent 0.00  

      18000 Investments/Endowments 0.00  

         18010 Wells Fargo Investment 0.00  

      Total 18000 Investments/Endowments $                                                            0.00  

      18600 Other Assets 0.00  

      18700 Security Deposits Asset 0.00  

      18711 Promise to Give - COCS 0.00  

   Total Other Assets $                                                            0.00  

TOTAL ASSETS $                                              3,815,597.07  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            20000 Accounts Payable 151,214.39  

            20100 Grants Payable 0.00  

         Total Accounts Payable $                                                 151,214.39  

         Credit Cards

            21600 Wells Fargo Business Card - Boegner 4,001.66  

         Total Credit Cards $                                                     4,001.66  

         Other Current Liabilities

            21000 PPP Loan 32,260.00  

            21100 Direct Deposit Liabilities 0.00  

            22000 Payroll Liabilities 0.00  

               22100 Federal Tax Payable 2,547.16  

               22200 Texas Unemployment Payable 489.34  

               22300 Simple IRA Payable 3,400.00  

               22400 Blue Cross Blue Shield Payable 2,278.69  

               22500 Guardian Insurance Payable 395.40  

               22600 HSA Payable 762.00  

            Total 22000 Payroll Liabilities $                                                     9,872.59  

            23000 Deferred Membership Dues 0.00  

            23100 Deferred Income 0.00  

            24200 Accrued Expenses 0.00  

            24300 Accrued Compensated Absences 4,029.94  

            25500 Sales Tax Payable 3,911.73  

               Texas Comptroller Payable (do not use) 701.18  

            Total 25500 Sales Tax Payable $                                                     4,612.91  

            25500 Sales Tax Payable (do not use) 0.00  

            25800 Unearned or Deferred Revenue 0.00  

            27201 Due to COCS- Reimbursements 0.00  

            27202 Due to COB - Reimbursements 0.00  

            Direct Deposit Payable 0.00  



            Sales Tax Agency Payable (do not use) 0.00  

            Square Sales Tax Payable (do not use) 0.00  

            State Comptroller Payable (do not use) 0.00  

         Total Other Current Liabilities $                                                   50,775.44  

      Total Current Liabilities $                                                 205,991.49  

      Long-Term Liabilities

         27100 Note payable to Citibank 0.00  

         27101 Notes Payable 0.00  

         27102 NP - Vera Bank 736,578.90  

      Total Long-Term Liabilities $                                                 736,578.90  

   Total Liabilities $                                                 942,570.39  

   Equity

      30000 Opening Bal Equity 0.00  

      31000 Net Assets - Donor Restricted 756,750.00  

      32000 Unrestricted Net Assets 2,162,007.38  

      Net Revenue -45,730.70  

   Total Equity $                                              2,873,026.68  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                                              3,815,597.07  

Friday, Jul 30, 2021 01:27:09 PM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



Actual Budget

Revenue

   430 Contributed Income 41,550.78  75,000.00  

      431 Membership Dues 11,560.00  

         431.1 Individual Membership 950.00  10,000.00  

         431.2 Affliates Membership 4,550.00  3,500.00  

         431.3 Business Membership 1,750.00  4,500.00  

      Total 431 Membership Dues $                     18,810.00  $                     18,000.00  

      432 Fundraising Events

         4324 Celebrate the Arts 22,850.00  120,000.00  

         4325 Boots & BBQ 680.00  20,000.00  

         4326 Empty Bowls, Jr. 10,550.07  12,500.00  

         4327 Celebrate the Arts Scholarship 14,400.00  15,000.00  

      Total 432 Fundraising Events $                     48,480.07  $                   167,500.00  

      433 Government Grants

         4331 College Station 27,208.30  31,500.00  

         4332 College Station HOT 406,928.00  416,678.00  

         4332-1 COCS HOT Reimbursements 3,000.00  

         4333 Bryan HOT 111,780.00  111,780.00  

         4333-1 COB HOT Reimbursements 600.00  

         4334 Brazos County 8,000.00  8,000.00  

         4335 TCA 10,000.00  

            TCA Revenue 6,907.00  

         Total 4335 TCA $                       6,907.00  $                     10,000.00  

         4336 Navasota HOT 21,600.00  21,600.00  

      Total 433 Government Grants $                   582,423.30  $                   603,158.00  

      434 Foundation & Trust Grants 1,547.98  11,700.00  

   Total 430 Contributed Income $                   692,812.13  $                   875,358.00  

   440 Program Service Revenue

      440.1 Red Wasp 2,000.00  

      440.2 Classes 1,345.00  1,600.00  

      440.3 Camps 14,515.00  8,500.00  

      440.4 Community Festival 5,480.00  4,000.00  

      440.6 Artist Call for Entry 492.48  1,700.00  

   Total 440 Program Service Revenue $                     21,832.48  $                     17,800.00  

   450 Other Revenue

      450.1 Miscellaneous Revenue 32,127.47  50.00  

      450.2 Investments 8,844.76  2,000.00  

      450.3 Rentals 9,355.00  17,500.00  

      453 Fundraising events (non-contrib 720.00  

   Total 450 Other Revenue $                     51,047.23  $                     19,550.00  

Total

The Arts Council of Brazos Valley

Budget vs. Actuals: FY2021 - FY21 P&L 
October 2020 - September 2021



   46000 Merchandise Sales 3,204.91  8,000.00  

   Discounts given 243.81  

   QuickBooks Payments Sales 18,191.15  

Total Revenue $                   787,331.71  $                   920,708.00  

Gross Profit $                   787,331.71  $                   920,708.00  

Expenditures

   600 Awards and Grants 8,000.00  

      601 Awards & Grants-Organizations 385,762.29  416,483.00  

         601-1 Returned Grants 3,600.00  

      Total 601 Awards & Grants-Organizations $                   385,762.29  $                   420,083.00  

      602 Awards & Grants-Individuals 21,700.00  15,000.00  

   Total 600 Awards and Grants $                   415,462.29  $                   435,083.00  

   610 Salaries and Related Expenses

      611 Salaries & Wages 111,066.65  190,000.00  

      612 Employer IRA Contributions 2,000.00  5,700.00  

      613 Employee Benefits-Other 600.00  720.00  

      614 Payroll taxes & fees 10,994.35  16,000.00  

      616 Employer Health Ins. Contribution 8,124.59  7,500.00  

   Total 610 Salaries and Related Expenses $                   132,785.59  $                   219,920.00  

   620 Fees for Services

      621 Accounting Fees 39,495.00  15,000.00  

      622 Legal Fees 5,000.00  

      624 Marketing Intern Fees 13,947.24  10,500.00  

   Total 620 Fees for Services $                     53,442.24  $                     30,500.00  

   630 Advertising, Printing, Promo. 42,538.51  53,450.00  

   631 Programs

      6312 ART for Life 11,455.18  13,500.00  

      6313 Gallery 5,264.63  6,000.00  

      6314 Camps 4,360.97  5,100.00  

      6315 Community Festivals 1,317.22  400.00  

      6316 Public Art 565.00  

      6317 Classes 1,313.41  1,400.00  

      6319 Red Wasp 327.30  2,000.00  

      6320 Artist Connect 4,087.56  8,000.00  

      6325 Programs-Other 320.43  1,500.00  

      6327 Empty Bowls, Jr. 5,617.08  7,500.00  

      6328 Artist in Residence 2,792.11  7,125.00  

   Total 631 Programs $                     37,420.89  $                     52,525.00  

   632 Fundraising

      6324 Celebrate the Arts 741.90  50,000.00  

      6329 Boots & BBQ 3,000.00  

      6330 Fundraising -  Other 5,500.00  

   Total 632 Fundraising $                          741.90  $                     58,500.00  

   640 Office Expenses 2,362.54  2,500.00  

      641 Postage, Mailing Service 648.38  700.00  

      643 Telephone, Telecommunications 4,402.19  

   Total 640 Office Expenses $                       7,413.11  $                       3,200.00  



   650 Information Technology 3,250.00  5,000.00  

   660 Occupancy

      662 Security 735.00  1,000.00  

      663 Janitorial 6,691.08  10,800.00  

      6635 Repairs & Maintenance 9,690.25  7,500.00  

      664 Pest Control 255.00  500.00  

      665 Utilities 16,276.31  20,000.00  

      667 Mortgage Interest 44,565.36  30,000.00  

   Total 660 Occupancy $                     78,213.00  $                     69,800.00  

   661 Facilities & Equipment Rental 1,856.64  1,980.00  

   670 Mileage 53.66  

      671 Travel & In-Region Mileage 1,087.31  2,000.00  

   Total 670 Mileage $                       1,140.97  $                       2,000.00  

   680 Insurance 14,063.00  13,200.00  

   690 Other expenses 149.55  

      691 Bank Charges 7,725.75  1,500.00  

      6911 Investment Losses 72.14  600.00  

      693 Donated Goods and Services 322.90  

      694 Memberships and Dues 912.20  1,575.00  

      695 Training & Development 473.12  3,375.00  

      697 Artist Commission 4,234.98  6,000.00  

      699 Other Costs 514.52  1,000.00  

      6999 Misc Expense 14,257.00  

   Total 690 Other expenses $                     28,662.16  $                     14,050.00  

Total Expenditures $                   816,990.30  $                   959,208.00  

Net Operating Revenue -$                    29,658.59  -$                    38,500.00  

Net Revenue -$                    29,658.59  -$                    38,500.00  

Friday, Jul 30, 2021 01:26:55 PM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



% of Budget

55.40%

9.50%

130.00%

38.89%

104.50%

19.04%

3.40%

84.40%

96.00%

28.94%

86.38%

97.66%

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

69.07%

100.00%

96.56%

13.23%

79.15%

0.00%

84.06%

170.76%

137.00%

28.97%

122.65%

64254.94%

442.24%

53.46%

261.11%

Total

The Arts Council of Brazos Valley

Budget vs. Actuals: FY2021 - FY21 P&L 
October 2020 - September 2021



40.06%

85.51%

85.51%

92.62%

0.00%

91.83%

144.67%

95.49%

58.46%

35.09%

83.33%

68.71%

108.33%

60.38%

263.30%

0.00%

132.83%

175.22%

79.59%

84.85%

87.74%

85.51%

329.31%

93.82%

16.37%

51.09%

21.36%

74.89%

39.19%

71.24%

1.48%

0.00%

0.00%

1.27%

94.50%

92.63%

231.66%



65.00%

73.50%

61.95%

129.20%

51.00%

81.38%

148.55%

112.05%

93.77%

54.37%

57.05%

106.54%

515.05%

12.02%

57.92%

14.02%

70.58%

51.45%

204.00%

85.17%

77.04%

77.04%

Friday, Jul 30, 2021 01:26:55 PM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



 
 

Page 1 of 11 

 
  

APRIL - JUNE 2021 QUARTERLY REPORT NARRATIVE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA FUNDING 

 
THE ARTS COUNCIL PROGRAMS 

 
Arts Council & Visitor Center Operations 
 

The Arts Council & Visitor Center is the hub of the arts, culture and heritage community in 
our region. It is home to a unique two-tier mezzanine gallery and three working studios, 
providing exhibit and retail space for works of art created by local artists and artists 
throughout Texas. On average, The Arts Council’s building and galleries hosts meetings for 
more than 10 affiliate groups per month and averages roughly 450 visitors and program 
participants each month. Due to the dangers presented by novel coronavirus, The Arts 
Council’s closed our public meeting spaces on March 20th, 2020, and reopened for staff, 
studio artists, and public gallery visits on May 20th with a limit of 10 people in the building. 
Since July of 2020, we have opened our facility to small affiliate meetings of groups of 15 or 
smaller. For larger events, we have developed new virtual meeting methods and program 
opportunities, reimagined programs to be held outdoors or properly distanced, or 
postponed events until large group gatherings are safer for our community. Social Distancing 
and sanitation measures continued to be updated and enforced for all staff and facility 
visitors. In April of 2021, we opened the gallery and office spaces to groups and visitor 
numbers of more than 15. As vaccinations have become more widely available and our 
community has begun to be more open to resuming attendance to programming, our 
attendance for both our office and gallery and our offered programs have started to increase 
again. The Arts Council had more than 2200 visitors and program participants this quarter. 
We expect visitation and meeting levels to return to normal (around 26 meetings per month) 
as the public health situation improves. 
 
From February 27th to July 17th, our galleries hosted a joint exhibit from our three College 
Station Artists-In-Residence, Colleen Bradfield, Amanda Dominguez, and Chris Wilson, titled 
Art from the Soul. This exhibit featured the work of these talented artists who specialize in 
three different mediums, acrylic, pastel, and watercolor, respectively. The exhibit features a 
variety of subjects from landscapes to wildlife to abstract works, all tied together by the three 
artists’ collective love for the process of creating and sharing their gifts. Each with academic 
backgrounds in fine arts, this former teacher, nurse, and former commercial artist provide a 
glimpse into their love of the arts and the depths of their creative skills.   
 
On July 20th, our mezzanine galleries welcomed College Station Artist in Residence Trevor 
Coopersmith’s solo exhibition, Body X Landscape. Trevor, who has exhibited internationally, 
experiments with non-traditional painting techniques and produces symbols of aesthetic 



 
 

Page 2 of 11 

and social contemplation. His solo exhibition, which features an interactive piece, explores 
juxtapositions between humanity and the natural world, and his painting practice centers 
around representing artistic language, ephemeral spaces, documenting individual 
experiences and translating coexistence onto the canvas.  
 
From March to May 15th, the Arts Council hosted an exhibit featuring entrants to our Texas-
themed tumbler design contest, the winning piece of which became the design for our limited 
edition tumbler sale fundraiser and was to be featured in our Boots & BBQ fundraiser. 
Participants for this contest included Texas artists from around the region. This year, Tony 
Upton was selected as our winner, and his piece Dia del Armadillo. As the fundraiser had to 
be postponed due to health concerns over COVID-19, we organized a new gallery showing 
for contest partipants to ensure that they received recognition for their work in a timely 
manner.  
 
From May 16th to July 6th, the Arts Council’s lobby gallery exhibited the work of Bryan Artist 
in Residence Krislyn Koehn. The exhibit, titled Outwards/Inwards: Charcoal and Digital 
Animation exhibits black, white, and gray works created both digitally and using charcoal 
and paper. The high-contrast, black and white pieces draw viewers into a play of light and 
dark, danger and ecstasy. The landscapes featured are the culmination of Krislyn’s time as 
an Artist in Residence with the Arts Council. 
 
Starting on July 15th, the Arts Council also held a lobby exhibit celebrating the art created by 
students from this summer’s art camps called Refrigerator Art. In this exhibit, drawings, 
paintings, and sculptures created by local youth fill our lobby space with color. The goal of 
this exhibit is to celebrate the medium of “refrigerator art” which allows our community to 
show off the creativity and skill of our loved ones.    
 
We were able to record virtual tours of our current gallery shows and three artists’ studios 
to provide remote options for visitors to view and enjoy art given increased safety measures 
due to the COVID-19 public health crisis. The virtual tours are hosted on our YouTube 
channel and shared on our website and social media pages. 
 
Funding Opportunities 
 

Perhaps the longest-standing means of support to the regional artistic community, The Arts 
Council funds programs, projects and education through its funding programs below. 
 

• Annual Program and Marketing Grants support affiliate organization projects that 
significantly promote arts, culture and heritage in the Brazos Valley through 
hotel/motel taxes from the City of College Station and the City of Bryan. The Arts 
Council distributed $171,956.00 in Annual Program and Marketing grant funding to 
its affiliates in the third quarter of FY 2021 in April for the College Station and Bryan 
grants. Of this total, $44,272.00 was distributed as a part of our Part B granting 
program, which was conducted to distribute funds that were returned due to 
canceled affiliate programs back to other affiliates who could use them in the current 
Fiscal Year. The following affiliates are recipients of funding of Annual Program and 



 
 

Page 3 of 11 

Marketing grants for FY 2021: Brazos Educational Radio, Brazos Valley African 
American Museum, Brazos Valley Art League dba Visual Arts Society BCS, Brazos 
Valley Chorale, Brazos Valley Museum of Natural History, Brazos Valley Symphony 
Society, Children’s Museum of the Brazos Valley, Fiestas Patrias Mexicanas of 
Bryan/College Station, Friends of Chamber Music, George Bush Presidential Library 
and Museum, Museum of the American G.I., Stage Center Community Theatre, and The 
Theatre Company of Bryan/College Station. 

• The Arts Council distributed $1,706.25 in Navasota Annual Program and Marketing 
funding in April. Grimes County Chamber of Commerce, Navasota Theatre Alliance, 
and Washington on the Brazos State Park Association are the recipients of Navasota 
Annual Program and Marketing funds in FY 2021. 

• $8,000 were awarded to five rural organizations in the Brazos Valley for our FY 21 
Rural Grants program. Rural Grants assist Arts Council affiliates operating in the rural 
portions of the Brazos Valley with program needs up to $2,500.  Funding is provided 
by The Arts Council for this program. Funded organizations for FY2021 include 
Brenham Children’s Chorus, Navasota Theatre Alliance, Troupe Over the Hill, Unity 
Theatre, and Washington on the Brazos State Park Association. 

• In Q3, the Arts Council awarded $20,200 for our annual scholarship program serving 
seniors graduating from high school in the seven-county Brazos Valley region.  These 
seniors must plan to attend an accredited 2- or 4-year university to student a degree 
plan in arts, culture, or heritage. 6 winners were announced, with 5 winners being 
awarded the $3,000 award, and one winner being awarded the $5,200 award.  



 
 

Page 4 of 11 

Following is a detailed chart of the impact of this funding in the community as provided by individual affiliates in their quarterly reports.  

AFFILIATE GRANT RECIPIENT 
FY 2021  

Q2 Grant 
Distributions 

Persons 
Impacted 

by 
Programs 

Projected 
Restaurant 

Impact 
(meals) 

Hotel 
Impact 
(room 
nights) 

PROGRAMS FUNDED 

Navasota Grimes Co. Chamber of 
Commerce $0.00 273 61 4 Groovy Grapes Wine Walk - 2021 

Navasota Theatre Alliance $1,706.25 0 0 0 No funded programs/marketing during this 
quarter 

Washington on the Brazos Historical 
Foundation $0.00 32,985 0* 0* 

Program and Marketing Support for the 
“Independence! A Lone Star Rises” program 

and the Juneteenth Heritage Celebration. 
TOTALS $1,706.25 33,258 61* 4*  

 
*Washington on the Brazos Historical Foundation cancelled their Texas Independence this year due to COVID and failed to collect 
any survey info since that is the event we usually cover. However they did host an event June 26 at the Barnhill Center where we 
invited cast and crew from the movie we produced "Independence! A Lone Star Rises" to join us for a premier party. Underwriters of 
the film were invited to attend. The event was on a Saturday night with food, drink and fun lasting until after 10. We would estimate 
approximately 25 percent stayed overnight in area hotels.  The Juneteenth Heritage Celebration was also held that day and enjoyed 
about 500 visitors. The program was researching the genealogy of five African American families which brought relatives from all 
over. For the April -June quarter Washington on the Brazos State Historic Site hosted approximately 33,000 visitors. From previous 
surveys, we estimate 20 percent or 8250 stayed overnight, and 37% or 12, 210 ate in local restaurants. 
 



 
 

Page 5 of 11 

Artistic Learning Opportunities 
 

• In Q3, we began planning to resume our Art after School program for the coming school 
year, following postponing of the program due to coronavirus. Given recent interest 
survey results, the program will likely be held one weekly on Tuesdays to provide 
students with arts opportunities outside of school hours.  

• In Q3, the Arts Council conducted and completed one of its most successful Summer Art 
Camp seasons to date. This year, 12 individual, week long art camps were held and more 
than 125 students attended. Camp themes included Claymation, pastels, music and song, 
paper making, general art skills, drawing, global art, printmaking, and pottery. Through 
these camps, 7 local art teachers and our artists in residence were able to provide hands 
on, small class size instruction to local youth interested in expanding their knowledge 
about the arts, while gaining access to more opportunities to support themselves through 
the arts over the summer term. Camp surveys showed a positive reception of the 
program.  

• In Q3, the Arts Council was able to return to its longstanding Artist Connect program after 
cancelled workshops due to coronavirus. We were able to conduct 7 different workshops 
that catered to the safety and learning needs of local Title 1 schools through in person 
and digitally offered workshops. Digitally offered workshops were conducted over zoom 
or recorded. We found that recorded workshops were particularly well received because 
the schools could show them to as many classes and students as they wished, without 
time restraints. The topics of these workshops included theatre, videography, 
printmaking, painting, drawing, and charcoal arts. Through testimonials made by 
participating teachers, we learned that the program was perceived as vital to providing 
the required variety of instruction denoted in local Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills 
(TEKS) arts education standards. According to one teacher, the program allowed for high 
quality arts programming from professionals specialized in fields less-understood by the 
local arts teacher. This access to specialized professional clinicians allows arts teachers 
to better meet TEKS Fine Arts class standards, which requires teachers to introduce 
students to every field in the arts. Further, students have been recorded saying that they 
deeply enjoy getting to meet real professional artists and learn about the possibilities 
available to them in arts careers.  

• Our three studio artists, including our newest studio artist, Amanda Dominguez, were 
allowed to continue their studio operations under continued heightened sanitation, 
social distancing, and contact tracing guidelines.  Their studio spaces are open to the 
public when the artists are present, and the artists are encouraged to safely engage with 
the visiting public and discuss their art.  

• Studio artists Amanda Dominguez, Chris Wilson, and Coleen Bradfield conducting art 
classes for youth and adults again at our facilities, focusing on mediums such as pastels, 
watercolors, and acrylics. 

• In Q3, The Arts Council welcomed our FY21 summer College Station Artist in Residence, 
Trevor Coopersmith. Trevor, who has exhibited internationally, experiments with non-
traditional painting techniques and produces symbols of aesthetic and social 
contemplation. The summer residency is open to current or recently-graduated students 
and provides them an opportunity to create their first solo exhibit.  



 
 

Page 6 of 11 

• Bryan Artist in Residence, Krislyn Koehn, continued her residency in Q3. Housed in the 
Kasparov Lofts in Downtown Bryan, she has participated in several of our online 
programs and radio interviews. Krislyn also participated as a teacher in our summer art 
camps program and taught a Saturday adult art class. 

• The Arts Council welcomed new Navasota Artists in Residence Jacob Jimerson and 
Arienne Boley. Arienne is a professional artist with a BFA in Illustration from Monserrat 
College of Art located in MA. Her painted work focuses on storytelling and capturing life 
with her art. Jacob is a professional artist who graduated with a B.A. in Studio Arts and 
Physics with minors in English in Math from Southwestern University. His current 
ceramic body of work titled Beauty, Utility, Fragility focuses on exploring the 
intersection of human civilization and the physical environment.  

• All of our artists in residence have participated in digital art opportunities including 
online Facebook art classes, Facebook live interviews, and radio station interviews. 

• Our Art for Life programming serving youth in juvenile detention programs continued 
into the third quarter, with youth participating at separate time slots on the Art for Life 
mural to follow safety precautions. This program works with youth to provide them 
with creative education and outlet opportunities, which has been proven to decrease 
participant’s likelihood to return to jail; project participants experience a recidivism 
rate more than 60% lower than the state average. Alongside working on a mural, young 
participants have also had the opportunity to attend classes teaching art, music, and 
poetry. Further, participating youth were taken on three field trips to museums in other 
cities, accompanied by our College Station Artist in Residence Trevor Coopersmith, 
where they were able to experience the museum under the mentorship of a 
professional artists, allowing them to ask questions and interact more closely with the 
art and artists of their communities.  

 
Community Outreach  
 

The Arts Council operates community outreach efforts designed to create access to artistic 
opportunity. Efforts include marketing, support of affiliate organizations, placement of art in 
public venues, and involvement in community events, such as online competition offerings 
and teaching. 
 
 
Marketing 

• Innumerable residents and visitors are served through regular marketing and 
outreach programs from mailings, advertisements, brochures, newspaper articles, 
television and radio spots/interviews, and our website, www.acbv.org.  

• The Arts Council regularly and extensively promotes affiliate events, Arts Council 
programs, and local art events through social media and paid online and print 
advertising. Marketing efforts target a statewide audience as well as providing up to 
date information to residents and visitors. Bryan Broadcasting, WTAW, KBTX and 
KAGS donate significant amounts of air time to run Arts Council Art Spots and 
interviews. Marketing efforts in the third quarter focused on supporting our affiliates 
and arts community, promotion for our virtual tours and talks, advertising our 
tumbler sales, spreading awareness of our public art installations, marketing our 



 
 

Page 7 of 11 

gallery shows and openings, and conducting promotional work for our Celebrate the 
Arts fundraiser, Artist in Residence Gallery Openings, and art classes and camps.  

• In the third quarter, the Arts Council conducted an extensive marketing campaign to 
gather survey entries for our survey measuring the impact of COVID-19 on the arts 
and culture community in the Brazos Valley. By spreading the word through 
television interviews, email campaigns, social media posts, and website materials, we 
have so far measured a loss of revenues in our local arts and culture community of 
more than $2 million. We hope to use this information to help bring funds into the 
Brazos Valley for recovery.  

• In the third quarter, the Arts Council distributed brochures detailing our organization 
and arts in the Brazos Valley to several travel centers. In total, 2,800 rack cards were 
sent to Amarillo, Anthony, Denison, Gainesville, Langtry, Laredo, Orange, Texarkana, 
Valley, Waskom, and Wichita Falls.  

• Postcards and mailings were sent out alongside extensive online marketing 
campaigns to promote our upcoming Celebrate the Arts fundraising event.  

• The “This Week in the Arts” e-newsletter was sent to over 3,000 subscribers weekly 
during the fourth quarter. The newsletter promotes upcoming arts events in the 
Brazos Valley and provides updates on Arts Council programs and projects.  

• Arts Council staff recorded regular interviews at WTAW studios during the third 
quarter. They were joined by Arts Council affiliates and city representatives, who 
were able use the opportunity to speak about their own organizations, programs, and 
holiday activities. The Arts Council also introduced incoming Artists in Residence 
through interviews concerning their background and art focus. Interviewees included 
The Theatre Company of Bryan College Station, Artist in Residence Trevor 
Coopersmith, the Brazos Valley Museum Collective, Brazos Valley African American 
Museum, our Navasota Artists in Residence, Brenham Children’s Chorus, and the 
TAMU Wright Gallery.  

• The Arts Council temporarily suspended our Art Spots, which are distributed directly 
to every hotel in Bryan/College Station and read as public service announcements on 
media outlets in the region. We have focused on updating our arts calendar and 
sharing affiliate Art Spots on our website, newsletter, and social media. We hope to 
resume our physical distribution and PSA recordings later in 2021.  

• The Arts Council presented content virtually through our YouTube channel, Facebook 
page and website. Executive Director Sheree Boegner recorded interviews via Zoom 
that were live streamed and recorded on Facebook and then shared on our website. 
Interviews included discussions with our recent scholarship recipients, live tours 
with gallery and studio artists, and live critiques with our artists in residence. These 
events will continue through the rest of 2021 and into 2022. 

• The Arts Council also worked to create a new website in Q3, detailing all of our 
programs and events and providing an easy centralized place for community 
members to access the information on the arts community  

 
Support of Affiliate Organizations  

• We support 59 affiliated arts, culture and heritage organizations across the Brazos 
Valley through funding, promotion, advocacy and partnership-building programs. 



 
 

Page 8 of 11 

The Arts Council’s facilities are typically available for use free of charge to all affiliates 
during regular business hours (Monday-Friday, 10am-5pm, Saturday, 1pm-4pm) and 
are typically used by many of these groups monthly. We were able to continue these 
meetings under COVID-19 safety measures in the third quarter. 

• Each year, the Arts Council offers professional development workshops to all 
affiliates and grantees free of cost, and to all other organizations for a small fee. In Q3, 
our grants specialist, Taryn Williames, provided a workshop on the importance of 
funding diversification and best practices and tips for finding and applying to 
different types of funding opportunities. Representatives from 19 local organizations 
attended the workshop. 

• The Arts Council continued to assist with the organization of the Brazos Valley 
Museum Collective and the Brazos Valley Theatre Collective.  The Museum Collective, 
made up of galleries and museums throughout the Brazos Valley, met virtually during 
the second quarter. The Brazos Valley Theatre Collective was able to continue their 
group meetings in the third quarter and discussed best practices for conducting their 
shows given the pandemic situation. The Theatre Collective also worked together to 
discuss different marketing methods for their shows. The Museum Collective spent 
this quarter developing a Collective-wide museum scavenger hunt event, 
encouraging participants to attend all member museums to fill out their cards and 
enter to win a prize. Other outside organizations were able to use our conference 
room to safely host virtual meetings with the rest of their members as well. 

• As a result of our in-house public relations efforts, The Arts Council and our affiliates 
are regularly covered in The Eagle and on local news stations. 

Art in Public Places 
• The Arts Council curates several Community Galleries at Large.  

o One of these Community Galleries at Large, the Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments’ building, hosted a show of artwork by studio artist Coleen 
Bradfield. 

o The Community Gallery-at-Large space at College Station City Hall began 
hosting College Station Studio Artist Amanda Dominguez’s Exhibit “COVID 
Heroes” alongside the winners from our recent Mask-erpiece mask design 
contest. 

o The City of Bryan gallery space hosted a small exhibit of the work of Bryan 
Artist in Residence Krislyn Koehn at the beginning of the quarter and was 
recently taken down to allow a new installation by College Station Studio 
Artist Chris Wilson to be shown. 

o The Navasota City Hall space continues to feature a new group show of 
summer themed artwork by Navasota High School students.  

o The Brazos Valley Plastic Surgery space now hosts a small show of artwork 
by College Station Studio Artist Coleen Bradfield. 

• Featuring twenty outdoor sculptures and over thirty art benches, the Public Art 
program is supported by local business partners and the cities of Bryan and College 
Station. This program aesthetically improves and fosters appreciation of the role of 
the arts in our community. 



 
 

Page 9 of 11 

• Hand of God by local artist John Magee continues to attract crowds to the ArtFill 
installation site in Downtown Bryan. 

   
Community Events 

• Due to the restrictions on activities and the dangers of coronavirus, The Arts Council’s 
ability to conduct direct, in-person events was limited. Still, the Arts Council, our 
affiliates, and our Artists in Residence were able to participate in and provide a 
number of programs this quarter. 

• Bryan Artist in Residence Krislyn Koehn participated in a Downtown Bryan Art Event 
on April 10th, where she set up a booth, selling artwork and showing a live art demo 
to the community.  

• On the weekends of April 9th, 16th, and 23rd, Arts council staff, board, and volunteers 
participated in Messina Hof’s Spring Release Dinner and Auction, as well as in the 
Wine & Roses Festival. The Arts Council was a coordinator of and benefit recipient of 
the silent auction held during the dinner. Over the consecutive weekends of the event, 
Arts Council volunteers helped with soliciting and administering the voting for the 
Wine Label Competition. This competition, organized annually by the Arts Council 
and Messina Hof, is open to artists statewide and provides cash prizes ot the top three 
participants. The winner’s artwork, this year that of Kit Miller, is used in the label for 
a Messina Hof wine annually.  

• Arts Council Executive Director Sheree Boegner participated as a volunteer for the 
Texas Commission for the Arts’ Cultural District Grant Panels, giving her time to 
review grant applications for the State of Texas and serve her fellow Texan arts 
community members.  

• In Q3, planning began for a new community art event, Community Art Day, which will 
be held in Q4. The goal of this new program is to provide our community with a day 
in which attendees can participate in several art projects and connect more strongly 
with their neighbors and their creativity.  

• In Quarter 3, gallery receptions were held virtually and in-person for our Bryan Artist 
in Residence Krislyn Koehn and on May 20th for our College Station Studio Artists 
Coleen Bradfield, Chris Wilson, and Amanda Dominguez. Navasota and College 
Station Artists in Residence attended this program as a networking opportunity 
These events allow community members to come and celebrate the hard work of the 
artists in the development of their shows, while also providing artists with an 
opportunity to network with the community.  

• Artists in Residence Arienne Boley and Jacob Jimerson conducted an Introducing the 
Artists event at Navasota Library where they assisted participating families with 
learning to draw and create art. The two artists are now also in the process of 
completing a mural at the Navasota Library, contributing to our public art efforts. 

• In order to continue to offer artistic opportunities to our community given the 
pandemic, we worked hard to create online events to provide the Brazos valley with 
creative outlets. In the third quarter, we opened a contest allowing community 
members to show their collections or art related to “Aggie Spirit”, creating an 
opportunity for the expression of creativity for an important part of our community 
history and culture.  



 
 

Page 10 of 11 

• The Arts Council of Brazos Valley worked in collaboration with Visit College Station 
and Destination Bryan and the City of Navasota in Q3.  

• On April 29th, the Arts Council held the Chamber of Commerce’s Business After Hours 
event, where local businesspeople were able to come together and network in our 
gallery spaces. This allowed community members to come together while also 
enjoying and making known the art opportunities available at the Arts Council 
galleries.  

• Our Art for Life programming, in which youth in juvenile detention services get 
opportunities to express themselves creatively and decrease their recidivism rates, 
continued into the second quarter, with youth participating at separate time slots on 
the Art for Life mural to follow safety precautions. Alongside work done on the mural, 
young participants have also had the opportunity to attend classes teaching art, 
music, and poetry. In July, youth presented their poetry at the Arts Council gallery to 
an audience of their community members.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 11 of 11 

FINANCIAL REPORT CITY OF NAVASOTA  
APRIL - JUNE  2021 

 
o In Q1 of FY 2021 the Arts Council received a total of $28,800.00 from City of Navasota 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue funds via check #015518, dated 19 November, 2020. 
These funds were utilized for the following in Q3:    
 

• $1,706.25 was utilized to fund quarterly affiliate grants on April 21st. See chart 
on page 4 for detailed grant allocations. 

• Other funding allocated in Q3 was utilized as follows: 
 $1,200.00 for Navasota Artist in Residence Stipends  
 $57.44 for Navasota Artist in Residence Exhibit promotional supplies. 

• The remainder of funds will be carried over for expenses in Q4 2021. 
 

Attachments 
• Profit & Loss and Current Balance Sheet as of end of Q3 FY2021 
• Affiliate FY 2021 Q3 Reports and Supplemental Documentation 

 



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

2020 Reds, Wheats & Blues Festival advertising support 
to draw visitors outside of a 50 mile radius
2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce
Mr. John Hugh McNally Jr. 
117 S. LaSalle Street
POB 530
Navasota, TX 77868

executivedirector@navasotagrimescham
ber.com
O: 936-825-6600
M: 936-355-6605

Mr. John Hugh  McNally  Jr.
117 S. LaSalle Street
POB 530
Navasota, TX 77868

executivedirector@navasotagrimeschamber.com
O: 936-825-6600
M: 936-355-6605



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2021. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2021).

Program Information
Project name 

2020 Reds, Wheats & Blues Festival advertising support to draw visitors outside of a 50 mile radius

Organization name* 
Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

Wine Walk

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

04/03/2021

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

04/03/2021

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$0.00



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$4,095.00

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

FY2021-Q3 NGCCOC QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

Groovy Grapes Wine Walk - 2021    [273 attendees]

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

4

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

61

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.
If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

Groovy Grapes 2021 Recap.pdf
We used a survey at the ticket booth to capture the response of every ticket buyer.  See attached.

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2021-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

groovy grapes 2021 image.jpg

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

2021 Groovy Grapes Poster.pdf

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form.  By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Johnny McNally

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

Executive Director

Contact Email* 
executivedirector@navasotagrimeschamber.com

Contact Phone* 
936.825.6600

Date* 
07/20/2021



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   FY2021-Q3 NGCCOC QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf
•   Groovy Grapes 2021 Recap.pdf
•   groovy grapes 2021 image.jpg
•   2021 Groovy Grapes Poster.pdf
 



Annual Marketing &Program Grant 
Quarterly Report Expense Chart 

FY 20ϮϬ-202ϭ
Date Payment Method 

(Include Check #) 

Payee  
(must match approved items on contract for 

grant-funded items) 

Total Payment 
Amount 

Amount Attributed 
to Grant 

Funded by which 
city? 

Amount Attributed 
to Matching 



 

  

Attendee Info: 

Local Meals: 

61 

(was 263 in 2019) 

Local 
Rooms: 

4 

Confirmed 
Attendees: 

273 

 

 
(was 
99 in 
2018) 

Route 
Completed: 

165 

Katy 2 
Sugarland 2 
Alberta, Canada 1 
Anaheim CA 1 
Arlington 1 
Canyon Lake 1 
Cypress 1 
Giddings 1 
Madisonville 1 
Richmond 1 
Rockdale 1 
Snook 1 
Tennessee 1 
Tyler 1 
Washington 1 
 

Navasota 94 
B/CS 39 
Montgomery 24 
Houston 19 
Anderson 10 
Plantersville 10 
Iola 8 
Conroe 5 
Waller 5 
Magnolia 4 
Spring 4 
Woodlands 4 
Dallas 3 
Arkansas 2 
Bastrop 2 
Bedias 2 
Fort Worth 2 
 



 

 

 

Advertising Sources / Respondents: 

Word of Mouth:  98 

Facebook: 68 

Recurring Event:  19 

Radio Ads:  14 

Happenstance:  10 
Internet:  6  

Newspaper ads:  5 

 

Income 

PROFIT 

INCOME 

EXPENSES 





Texas wines from our region

BIG CHEF’S

KITCHEN

Finger foods from local eateries

Peace     Love     Wine

GROOVY GRAPES

SATURDAY, APRIL 3

WINE WALKWINE WALK

Downtown Navasota 2 PM - 6 PM

GROOVY GRAPES

w w w . n a v a s o t a g r i m e s c h a m b e r . c o m

You are invited to enjoy an afternoon shopping with local merchants and tasting a variety of
Texas wines.  Please present a valid state or government issued photo ID.

Ages 21+  $20 Admission

T H A N K  Y O U  T O
O U R  S P O N S O R S !

Downtown Navasota 2 PM - 6 PM



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

Programming for 36th Season
2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Navasota Theatre Alliance
Joyce Yorek 
104 W. Washington Avenue
Navasota, TX 77868

navasotatheatrealliance@gmail.com
O: 936-825-3195

Dawn  Jourdan  
dawnjourdan@arch.tamu.edu
O: 816-739-4416



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2021. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2021).

Program Information
Project name 

Programming for 36th Season

Organization name* 
Navasota Theatre Alliance

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

Joyce Yorek

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

04/01/2021

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

06/30/2021

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$1,706.25



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$0.00

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

We didn't have a program this quarter therefore we didn't have any attendees.

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

0

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

0

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.
If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

We include a survey on the ticket sales page and also ask patrons when they are buying tickets in person.

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2021-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form.  By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Joyce Yorek

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

Navasota Theatre Alliance

Contact Email* 
navasotatheatrealliance@gmail.com

Contact Phone* 
9368253195

Date* 
07/29/2021



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
No files were uploaded
 



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

Year round marketing support
2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Washington on the Brazos State Park Association
Mrs. Ginger Yvonne Moreland 
P.O. Box 1
23400 Park Rd. 12
Washington, TX 77880

office@wheretexasbecametexas.org
O: 979-830-1824
M: 979-830-1824

Mrs. Ginger Yvonne  Moreland  
P.O. Box 1
23400 Park Rd. 12
Washington, TX 77880

office@wheretexasbecametexas.org
O: 979-830-1824
M: 979-830-1824



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2021. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2021).

Program Information
Project name 

Year round marketing support

Organization name* 
Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

Ginger Moreland

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

04/01/2021

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

06/30/2021

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$3,277.50



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$1,231.99

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

NAVASOTA EXPENSE REPORT JUNE 2021.pdf

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

April-15365
May-8693
June-8927

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

0

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

0

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.
If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

Copy of TIDC Marketing Survey Results.xlsx

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2021-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

We did not have our Texas Independence Day Celebration this year due to COVID and failed to collect any 
survey info since that is the event we usually cover. However we did host an event June 26 at the Barnhill 
Center where we invited cast and crew from the movie we produced "Independence! A Lone Star Rises" to 
join us for a premier party. Underwriters of the film were invited to attend. The event was on a Saturday night 
with food, drink and fun lasting until after 10. We would estimate approximately 25 percent stayed overnight 
in area hotels.  The Juneteenth Heritage Celebration was also held that day and enjoyed about 500 visitors. 
The program was researching the genealogy of five African American families which brought relatives from 
all over. 

For the April -June quarter Washington on the Brazos State Historic Site hosted approximately 33,000 
visitors. From previous surveys, we estimate 20 percent or 8250 stayed overnight, and 37% or 12, 210 ate in 
local restaurants.

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

Event Brochure.pdf

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form.  By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Ginger Moreland

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

Administrator

Contact Email* 
office@wheretexasbecametexas.org

Contact Phone* 
9798301824



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

Date* 
07/09/2021



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 30 July 2021 2021 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 6

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   NAVASOTA EXPENSE REPORT JUNE 2021.pdf
•   Copy of TIDC Marketing Survey Results.xlsx
•   Event Brochure.pdf
 



Annual Marketing &Program Grant 
Quarterly Report Expense Chart 

FY 2020-2021
Date Payment Method 

(Include Check #) 

Payee  
(must match approved items on contract for 

grant-funded items) 

Total Payment 
Amount 

Amount Attributed 
to Grant 

Funded by which 
city? 

Amount Attributed 
to Matching 



2020 TIDC Marketing Survey Results

Zip code # in party Age
Did you stay
overnight?

Where did you stay
overnight? Resturant

Ohio 45233 3 73 Friend Huntsville Yes
Ohio 45245 3 70 Friend Huntsville Yes
Indiana 47424 2 69 Friend Bryan No
Michigan 48438 2 65 Hotel Yes
Iowa 51501 3 63 Friend Humble Yes
Arkansas 71961 1 82 yes CONROE yes
California 76794 3 65 Yes
California 77400 4 37 No
Louisiana 77490 3 49 No
California 77804 5 60 No
Amarillo 79110 2 37
Abilene 79698 12 21 Hotel Yes

79801 2 70 Yes
California 92626 2 77 yes north zulch yes

95361 1 Hotel Katy
Costa Rica 2 62 Friend No
Japan 7 21-60 yes collegestation yes
New York 2 67 Hotel Austin Yes
Poland 7
Washington 1 45 Yes
California 77548 1 40
Plano 75023 3 77 Hotel Yes
Plano 75025 3 50, 11, 22 Friend College Station Yes
The Colony 75056 2 46 Hotel Navasota Yes
Irving 75061 6 69 Friend Shiner No
McKinney 75072 2 yes BRENHAM yes
Wylie 75098 2 52 Hotel Brenham Yes
Bardwell 75101 3 66 RV Bryan Yes
Greenville 75401 2 19 Hotel College Station Yes
Anna 75409 5 27 Friend Bryan
Anna 75409 1 31 YES BRENHAM YES
Lake Creek 75450 3 56 Hotel Brenham Yes
Quinlan 75474 2 60 Hotel Navasota No
Bedford 76021 2 46 Hotel College Station Yes
Burleson 76028 4 75 Hotel Brenham Yes
Mineral Wells 76067 10 13-66 No
Grapevine 76092 1 58 YES CONROE NO
Benbrook 76116 7 61 Family Montgomery
Benbrook 76116 1 30 No
Wichita Falls 76301 2 56 Hotel Brenham Yes
Stephenville 76401 5 48 Friend Bryan No
Livingston 77399 2 58 RV Willis Yes
Livingston 77399 2 63 Yes



Huntington 75949 6 59 No
Huntington 75949 7 54 Friend Trinity No
Livingston 77351 8 52 No
Groves 77619 2 26 Yes
Orange 77632 4 17-59 Yes
Beaumont 77703 2 49
McGregor 76657 2 44 Yes
Perry 76682 3 46 No
Waco 76708 3 37
Fort Hood 77001 3 61 No
Fort Hood 77005 1 69 No
Fort Hood 77006 3 58 No
Fort Hood 77020 1 45 No
Houston 77040 1 61 Yes
Houston 77049 1 31 Yes
Houston 77059 25 54 Yes
Houston 77063 28 68 Yes
Houston 77064 5 60 Yes
Houston 77065 4 28 Yes
Houston 77069 2 62 No
Houston 77070 2 80 Yes
Houston 77070 2 31 No
Houston 77084 4 28 No
Houston 77088 2 48 BNB Chappel Hill Yes
Houston 77094 22 63
Houston 77095 2 58 No
Houston 77095 3 47 No
Conroe 77302 2 60 No
Conroe 77302 2 65 No
Conroe 77303 1 72 No
Conroe 77303 2 11, 45 No
Montgomery 77316 2 52 No
Montgomery 77316 3 78 Friend Yes
Montgomery 77316 2 30
Willis 77318 3 57 No
Willis 77318 2 72 No
Willis 77318 6 No
Huntsville 77320 3 46 No
Huntsville 77320 2 38 No
Kingwood 77339 2 38 No
Huntsville 77340 2 64 No
Huntsville 77341 4 32 No
Kingwood 77345 2 No
Kingwood 77346 3 59 No
Magnolia 77354 5 50 No
Magnolia 77354 2 40 No
Stagecoach 77355 2 65 yes



Montgomery 77356 5 39 No
Montgomery 77356 4 74 No
Montgomery 77356 2 61 No
Montgomery 77356 2 46, 37 No
Montgomery 77356 1 39
New Waverly 77358 3 31 Friend No
Todd Mission 77363 2 60 No
Todd Mission 77363 3 25 No
Porter 77365 1 56 Yes
Splendora 77372 3 50 No
Spring 77373 2 54 No
Spring 77373 9 Yes
Spring 77373 2 73 yes BRENHAM yes
Tomball 77377 3 29 No
Willis 77378 2 47 Yes
Spring 77379 4 48 Yes
Spring 77379 60 49
Spring 77379 5 40
Spring 77379 2 79 BNB Houston Yes
Spring 77382 2 No
Spring 77382 7 46 No
Conroe 77384 2 77 Friend
Conroe 77384 4 42 No
Conroe 77385 2 73 Yes
Spring 77386 2 67 No
Spring 77386 2 49 No
Spring 77386 2 68 Yes
Spring 77388 2 60 No
Spring 77389 20 68 Yes
Spring 77389 63 No
Humble 77396 2 55 Hotel No
Cypress 77429 25 60 Yes
Cypress 77429 2 58 RV Bryan Yes
Cypress 77429 2 32 No
Cypress 77429 2 68 Yes
Cypress 77429 4 40 Yes
Cypress 77429 3 49 No
Cypress 77429 2 73 Yes
Cypress 77433 5 40
Cypress 77433 9 41 No
Cypress 77433 3 45
Cypress 77433 2 55 Yes
Cypress 77433 5 39 No
Cypress 77433 3 55 Yes
Elmaton 77440 3 Yes
Hockley 77447 70 55 Yes
Katy 77449 3 66 No



Katy 77449 2 20 Friend Katy No
Katy 77450 23 65
Katy 77450 3 65 No
Katy 77450 3 49 No
Katy 77450 3 47 No
Katy 77450 35 73 No
Clodine 77469 3 54 No
Sugar Land 77478 3 63 No
Sugar Land 77479 2 73 Hotel Brenham Yes
Sweeny 77480 2 31 yes navasota yes
Thompsons 77481 2 55
Prairie View 77484 3 57 Yes
Prairie View 77484 4 40 No
Missouri City 77489 1 69 No
Missouri City 77489 2 71 Hotel Brenham Yes
Katy 77493 3 40 No
Katy 77494 2 43 Yes
Katy 77494 2 50 No
Katy 77494 4 No
Sugar Land 77498 4 46 No
Pasadena 77502 6 66 Friend College Station Yes
Pasadena 77503 3 40 No
Pasadena 77504 4 48 No
Pasadena 77504 4 63 No
Beach City 77523 6 29 Yes
Channelview 77530 4 36 & 47 No
Friendswood 77546 5 73 Yes
Friendswood 77546 2 66 No
Friendswood 77546 5 76 Yes
League City 77573 4 49 Hotel College Station No
Pearland 77581 3 31 No
Webster 77598 2 40 No
Industry 78944 2 63 Yes
Lexington 78947 2 85 No
West Point 78963 2 55 Yes
Bryan 77802 2 65 No
Bryan 77802 3 63 No
Bryan 77802 4 44 Yes
Bryan 77802 2 33 No
Bryan 77803 7 40 No
Bryan 77803 3 39 Yes
Bryan 77807 3 67
Bryan 77807 3 53 Yes
Bryan 77807 3 43 No
Bryan 77808 2 60 No
Bryan 77808 2 52 No
Bryan 77808 4 32 No



Bryan 77808 4 54 No
Bryan 77808 1 No
Anderson 77830 3 66, 66, 15 Yes
Anderson 77830 3 24 Yes
Brenham 77833 3 No
Brenham 77833 2 49 Yes
Brenham 77833 5 18 Yes
Brenham 77833 5 30 Yes
Brenham 77833 4 58 No
Brenham 77833 2 58 Hotel Brenham Yes
Brenham 77833 3 39
Brenham 77833 2 30
Brenham 77833 1 39
Brenham 77833 4 54 yes
Brenham 77833 4 34 n/a yes
Brenham 77833 4 32 n/a yes
Brenham 77834 2 61 Yes
College Station 77840 1 24 No
College Station 77840 3 44 No
College Station 77840 4 38 Yes
College Station 77845 4 65 no
College Station 77845 7 63 No
College Station 77845 2 35 Yes
College Station 77845 9 39 No
College Station 77845 3 30
College Station 77845 4 55
College Station 77845 5 55 No
College Station 77845 5 43 No
College Station 77845 6 31 No
College Station 77845 4
College Station 77845 4 37 No
College Station 77845 4 43
College Station 77845 5 29 No
College Station 77845 2 79 Yes
College Station 77845 3 51 Friend College Station No
College Station 77845 2 66
College Station 77845 4 35 Hotel Brenham Yes
College Station 77845 2 35 No
College Station 77845 5 41 No
Franklin 77853 3 45 Yes
Flynn 77855 12 27
Navasota 77861 2 51 Yes
Navasota 77861 2 70
Navasota 77868 3 64 No
Navasota 77868 2 79 No
Navasota 77868 2 68 Yes
Navasota 77868 2 74



Navasota 77868 2 56 No
Navasota 77868 2 33
North Zulch 77872 1 YES
North Zulch 77872 5 36 Yes
Somerville 77879 3 64
Somerville 77879 8 62 Yes
Somerville 77879 8 62 No
Somerville 77879 8 59 No
Somerville 77879 8 66 RV somerville No
Washington 77880 4 42 no
Washington 77880 2 58
Washington 77880 2 58 Yes
Bellville 77418 2 55 No
Bellville 77418 4 45 No
Bellville 77418 4 30
Bellville 77418 2 68 No
Chappell Hill 77426 6 21 No
Canyon Lake 78130 4 80 Yes
San Antonio 78240 3 67 yes navasota yes
San Antonio 78253 3 42
Falfurrias 78355 2 60 RV Mongomery Yes
Port Isabel 78578 2 66 RV Montgomery Yes
Cedar Park 78613 4 52 Hotel College Station No
Elgin 78621 2 52 yes elgin no
Elgin 78621 2 34 No
Elgin 78621 2 34 No
Elgin 78621 2 55 No
Sun City 78628 12 52 No
Marble Falls 78654 2 75 Yes
Marble Falls 78654 2 67 Yes
Pflugerville 78660 2 71 No
Austin 78705 2 48 No
Austin 78717 2 57 Yes
Austin 78726 3 No
Austin 78726 2 54 No
Austin 78745 1 77 No
Austin 78748 3 11, 47, 37 Yes
Austin 78750 5 68 Friend Chappel Hill Yes
Austin 78757 2 74 Yes
Austin 78759 2 41
Austin 78902 4 52 No
Trinity 75862 8 41 Yes
Taylor 76574 5 43 No

103 ate



1163 20% stayed overnight 37% ate at a local resturant



How did you hear about the event? Email more info
Word of Mouth texasamkast@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook
Website warnerlynne@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth overskeetv@yahoo.com Yes
word of mouth faburns102637@windstream.net
Facebook, Word of Mouth cyn2192@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Magazine
Website
Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth eric.bruntmyer@hsutx.edu Yes
Facebook
word of mouth
Magazine
Word of Mouth
website, word of mouth, facebook
Newspaper rlevy@richardmlevy.com Yes

Website jstockley@live.com.au Yes
Word of Mouth, Facebook mujer.dama@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook ahcarter37@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth bcinclair@gmail.com Yes
Website amybethclark@gmail.com Yes
Website dsblairirving@aol.com Yes
facebook jamespowdrill96@hotmail.com
Word of Mouth mary.shaddox1@gmail.com Yes
Website
Facebook
Word of Mouth sarah.faye.carlson@gmail.com Yes
website, word of mouth, facebook
Magazine mbaird805@aol.com Yes
Facebook
Facebook wfisher83927@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth johnhobel@att.net Yes
Word of Mouth
website, word of mouth, facebook burns-tom1@live.com
Word of Mouth rabbomar@gmail.com Yes
Website, Facebook mgarrett1015@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth, Facebook jmdixondelivers@aol.com Yes
Word of Mouth ramoravec@embargmail.com Yes
Website tracie4755@outlook.com Yes
Facebook

2020 TIDC Marketing Survey Results

mailto:texasamkast@yahoo.com
mailto:warnerlynne@gmail.com
mailto:overskeetv@yahoo.com
mailto:cyn2192@yahoo.com
mailto:eric.bruntmyer@hsutx.edu
mailto:rlevy@richardmlevy.com
mailto:jstockley@live.com.au
mailto:mujer.dama@yahoo.com
mailto:ahcarter37@gmail.com
mailto:bcinclair@gmail.com
mailto:amybethclark@gmail.com
mailto:dsblairirving@aol.com
mailto:mary.shaddox1@gmail.com
mailto:sarah.faye.carlson@gmail.com
mailto:mbaird805@aol.com
mailto:wfisher83927@gmail.com
mailto:johnhobel@att.net
mailto:rabbomar@gmail.com
mailto:mgarrett1015@yahoo.com
mailto:jmdixondelivers@aol.com
mailto:ramoravec@embargmail.com
mailto:tracie4755@outlook.com


Word of Mouth texastotal@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth arhaney@yahoo.com Yes
Word of mouth yolanda.poncho@naskila.com Yes
Website, Word of Mouth ajjohnson@gt.rr.com Yes
Word of Mouth darthur573@aol.com Yes
Facebook katitcha@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth golfsistersmom@yahoo.com Yes
Website rpursche@aol.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth
Website
Facebook texasleewing@earthlink.net Yes
Word of Mouth

Website rduranjr@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth annieyen1207@yahoo.com Yes

Word of Mouth
Website
Website
Word of Mouth peggybj@aol.com Yes
Facebook dinh0815@gmail.com Yes
Facebook kathycarballo@gmail.com Yes
Website richardsreina@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Instagram hives.stephanie@gmail.com Yes
Facebook hkzapata13@gmail.com Yes
Word Of Mouth chunkcat2000@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook sisterhubert@msn.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth cv3mom@gmail.com Yes
Website rmphi@sbcglobal.net Yes
Website dhlzman45@att.net Yes
Word of Mouth kecarmona07@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook rumisha.rice@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Website, Facebook pierce0103@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook krash451@gmail.com Yes
Facebook jen.janes81@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook dannycareys.prodigy@yahoo.com Yes
Website
Facebook
Word of Mouth amshnak@yahoo.com Yes
Magazine, Website bruce.ellis.mail@gmail.com Yes
Word of mouth, Facebook texasrepublic4even@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook wleyenor@hotmail.com Yes
word of mouth cabs1655@yahoo.com yes

mailto:texastotal@yahoo.com
mailto:arhaney@yahoo.com
mailto:yolanda.poncho@naskila.com
mailto:ajjohnson@gt.rr.com
mailto:darthur573@aol.com
mailto:katitcha@gmail.com
mailto:golfsistersmom@yahoo.com
mailto:rpursche@aol.com
mailto:texasleewing@earthlink.net
mailto:rduranjr@gmail.com
mailto:annieyen1207@yahoo.com
mailto:peggybj@aol.com
mailto:dinh0815@gmail.com
mailto:kathycarballo@gmail.com
mailto:richardsreina@gmail.com
mailto:hives.stephanie@gmail.com
mailto:hkzapata13@gmail.com
mailto:chunkcat2000@yahoo.com
mailto:sisterhubert@msn.com
mailto:cv3mom@gmail.com
mailto:rmphi@sbcglobal.net
mailto:dhlzman45@att.net
mailto:kecarmona07@yahoo.com
mailto:rumisha.rice@yahoo.com
mailto:pierce0103@yahoo.com
mailto:krash451@gmail.com
mailto:jen.janes81@yahoo.com
mailto:dannycareys.prodigy@yahoo.com
mailto:amshnak@yahoo.com
mailto:bruce.ellis.mail@gmail.com
mailto:texasrepublic4even@yahoo.com
mailto:wleyenor@hotmail.com


Word of Mouth
Facebook jbwall@consolidated.net Yes
Word of Mouth jeanehill@hotmail.com Yes
Facebook phillipsjonm@gmail.com Yes

Facebook klandry570@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook mishelalpizar@gmail.com Yes
Facebook jenhoppashyde@yahoo.com Yes
Website kmbri73@aol.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook mvmfitness1993@gmail.com Yes
website, word of mouth, facebook diannekip@sbcglobal.net
Word of Mouth debbiepike@yahoo.com Yes
Website william.e.muirhead@gmail.com Yes
Radio inho21@hotmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook kelsbog@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth sjb@gmstalent.com Yes
Website dakinney@sbcglobal.net Yes
Facebook smschier@yahoo.com Yes
Website
Website
Facebook
Word of Mouth
Facebook bcarclan3@live.com Yes
Facebook darmadlee@hotmail.com Yes
TV ahuffman60@gmail.com Yes
Website
Word of Mouth yvonne.pevateaux@cadencebank.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Magazine scs99@sbcglobal.net Yes
Facebook Qsnuzulose@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth sarahbelle0687@yahoo.com Yes
Radio, Word of Mouth, Facebook frankoswald@att.net Yes
Website, Facebook erazocypress@aol.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth bigtuna1972@gmail.com Yes
Facebook rsever@sbcglobal.net Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook

jeckstrum@gmail.com Yes
Facebook mrsmtflores@gmail.com Yes
Website
Word of Mouth jparnold@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth jewclerylady112@yahoo.com Yes

mailto:jbwall@consolidated.net
mailto:jeanehill@hotmail.com
mailto:phillipsjonm@gmail.com
mailto:klandry570@gmail.com
mailto:mishelalpizar@gmail.com
mailto:jenhoppashyde@yahoo.com
mailto:kmbri73@aol.com
mailto:mvmfitness1993@gmail.com
mailto:debbiepike@yahoo.com
mailto:william.e.muirhead@gmail.com
mailto:inho21@hotmail.com
mailto:kelsbog@gmail.com
mailto:sjb@gmstalent.com
mailto:dakinney@sbcglobal.net
mailto:smschier@yahoo.com
mailto:bcarclan3@live.com
mailto:darmadlee@hotmail.com
mailto:ahuffman60@gmail.com
mailto:yvonne.pevateaux@cadencebank.com
mailto:scs99@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Qsnuzulose@gmail.com
mailto:sarahbelle0687@yahoo.com
mailto:frankoswald@att.net
mailto:erazocypress@aol.com
mailto:bigtuna1972@gmail.com
mailto:rsever@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jeckstrum@gmail.com
mailto:mrsmtflores@gmail.com
mailto:jparnold@yahoo.com
mailto:jewclerylady112@yahoo.com


Word of Mouth
Website, word of mouth
Word of Mouth Ameekus@aol.com Yes
Word jigisha_wari@yahoo.com Yes
Radio ls1mn6@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook
Website, Facebook
Word of Mouth
facebook, instagram wadedillon1836@gmail.com yes
Word of Mouth kklix@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook srhusband2014@@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook rxrnurse@gmail.com Yes
Facebook ruthcollinssmith@sbcglobal.net Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook aggiegrad102@yahoo.com Yes
Radio, TV, Newspaper, Website aarondrosche21@gmail.com Yes
Facebook
TV georgepolar@gmail.com Yes
Facebook gretchen.pearce@houstonisd.org Yes
Newspaper, Word of Mouth mcreyesdnpe@yahoo.com Yes
Website robertgrote@me.com Yes
Facebook
Website don.jones08@gmail.com Yes
Facebook williamhollomon@hotmail.com Yes
Facebook joannathompson83@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth ppiper2@att.net Yes
Word of Mouth jeffduncombe@aol.com Yes
Word of Mouth javelinsailor@gmail.com Yes
Website patirn19@gmail.com Yes
Facebook tirer1988@gmail.com Yes
Facebook lordzant16@hotmail.com Yes
Facebok vh296@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook mimiallison@gmail.com Yes
Newspaper tjcurere@yahoo.com Yes
Newspaper dmhoyt1054@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth alan56@suddenlink.net yes
Word of Mouth trudystansbury@gmail.com Yes
TV, Word of Mouth justinandsarahatchley@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth jahobson@gmail.com Yes
Facebook jeffhefti2626@gmail.com Yes
TV, Newspaper, Word of Mouth

piezo66@gmail.com Yes
Facebook donald.brunkenhoefer@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook
Facebook jbrad06@yahoo.com Yes

mailto:Ameekus@aol.com
mailto:jigisha_wari@yahoo.com
mailto:ls1mn6@yahoo.com
mailto:kklix@yahoo.com
mailto:rxrnurse@gmail.com
mailto:ruthcollinssmith@sbcglobal.net
mailto:aggiegrad102@yahoo.com
mailto:aarondrosche21@gmail.com
mailto:georgepolar@gmail.com
mailto:gretchen.pearce@houstonisd.org
mailto:mcreyesdnpe@yahoo.com
mailto:robertgrote@me.com
mailto:don.jones08@gmail.com
mailto:williamhollomon@hotmail.com
mailto:joannathompson83@gmail.com
mailto:ppiper2@att.net
mailto:jeffduncombe@aol.com
mailto:javelinsailor@gmail.com
mailto:patirn19@gmail.com
mailto:tirer1988@gmail.com
mailto:lordzant16@hotmail.com
mailto:vh296@yahoo.com
mailto:mimiallison@gmail.com
mailto:tjcurere@yahoo.com
mailto:dmhoyt1054@gmail.com
mailto:alan56@suddenlink.net
mailto:trudystansbury@gmail.com
mailto:justinandsarahatchley@gmail.com
mailto:jahobson@gmail.com
mailto:jeffhefti2626@gmail.com
mailto:piezo66@gmail.com
mailto:donald.brunkenhoefer@gmail.com
mailto:jbrad06@yahoo.com


Radio
Facebook
Word of Mouth kayb3039@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth analeigh@sweethomesweets.com Yes
Radio sarah.boyd.cook@gmail.com Yes
Facebook eevasfamily@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth janblackmo5104@gmail.com Yes
Radio maggiecamacho0927@gmail.com Yes
Radio, Website angelsnow2700@yahoo.com Yes
Newspaper, Website msome9@aol.com Yes
Radio, Newspaper, Website, Facebook
Newspaper papajo042@gmail.com Yes

website, word of mouth, facebook txspyderlynn@yahoo.com
word of mouth cadillacblues14@gmail.com
word of mouth jwhitehead787@gmail.com
Facebook mcmoloney50@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook bbgirl254@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Radio djanefmelo@gmail.com Yes
newspaper whinkle@laseranswering.com yes
newspaper
Website mphillips@csisd.org Yes
Facebook rbr2753@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth kathryn.m.nevels@gmail.com Yes

Newspaper, Website
Website historytexas@gmail.com Yes
Radio danielleake@reagon.com Yes
Facebook
Website janinekirk@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Website rouge_raven117@hotmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Newspaper jrudy2@verizon.net Yes
Radio, Website vmoodyartist@gmail.com Yes
Website alterica_kika@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook laylahc@suddenlink.net Yes
Newspaper melissatxzz@hotmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth jmillilein@gmail.com Yes
Website bethani_leenewsom@yahoo.com Yes
TV

Facebook
Newspaper
Facebook
Facebook

mailto:kayb3039@gmail.com
mailto:analeigh@sweethomesweets.com
mailto:sarah.boyd.cook@gmail.com
mailto:eevasfamily@yahoo.com
mailto:janblackmo5104@gmail.com
mailto:maggiecamacho0927@gmail.com
mailto:angelsnow2700@yahoo.com
mailto:msome9@aol.com
mailto:papajo042@gmail.com
mailto:mcmoloney50@yahoo.com
mailto:bbgirl254@gmail.com
mailto:djanefmelo@gmail.com
mailto:mphillips@csisd.org
mailto:rbr2753@gmail.com
mailto:kathryn.m.nevels@gmail.com
mailto:historytexas@gmail.com
mailto:danielleake@reagon.com
mailto:janinekirk@gmail.com
mailto:rouge_raven117@hotmail.com
mailto:jrudy2@verizon.net
mailto:vmoodyartist@gmail.com
mailto:alterica_kika@yahoo.com
mailto:laylahc@suddenlink.net
mailto:melissatxzz@hotmail.com
mailto:jmillilein@gmail.com
mailto:bethani_leenewsom@yahoo.com


TV, website rthane4@gmail.com Yes
Website kksampeck@gmail.com Yes
word of mouth
Word of Mouth
Facebook jjspears2@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth, Facebook angeliabeene@yahoo.com Yes
Facebook carolynlilley2013@gmail.com Yes
Newspaper rechonlewis85@gmail.com Yes
Radio michaelboene5530@yahoo.com Yes
facebook jill.whitmore@live.com yes
Facebook barbara.boncher12@gmail.com Yes
Radio, Newspaper, Word of Mouth
Word of Mouth tlplumer@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth amd493@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth paige_imwalle89@icloud.com Yes
Newspaper
Word of Mouth sharacummins21@gmail.com Yes
Word of Mouth
website, word of mouth, facebook allenmo1953@gmail.com yes
Word of Mouth cshubiak@yahoo.com Yes
Website evwest@swbell.net Yes
Website
Word of Mouth
facebook dustysmommy14@gmail.com yes
Website cerda1986@yahoo.com Yes
Website cerde1986@yahoo.com Yes

sealifeelv@yahoo.com Yes
Website autumnhibnex@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth
Facebook shirleyking7@verizon.net Yes
Website
Instagram reynoldsstephen@hotmail.com Yes
Website, Word of Mouth, Facebook
Word of Mouth mzgmt00ke@yahoo.com Yes
Website
Newspaper
Facebook da_lilange17@yahoo.com Yes
Word of Mouth karen.ski@att.net Yes
Word of Mouth justin.minster@thc.texas.gov Yes
Facebook
Website, Facebook
Word of Mouth rc.mounsey78@gmail.com Yes
Facebook jennifer.burnum@gmail.com Yes

mailto:rthane4@gmail.com
mailto:kksampeck@gmail.com
mailto:jjspears2@gmail.com
mailto:angeliabeene@yahoo.com
mailto:carolynlilley2013@gmail.com
mailto:rechonlewis85@gmail.com
mailto:michaelboene5530@yahoo.com
mailto:barbara.boncher12@gmail.com
mailto:tlplumer@gmail.com
mailto:amd493@gmail.com
mailto:paige_imwalle89@icloud.com
mailto:sharacummins21@gmail.com
mailto:cshubiak@yahoo.com
mailto:evwest@swbell.net
mailto:cerda1986@yahoo.com
mailto:cerde1986@yahoo.com
mailto:sealifeelv@yahoo.com
mailto:autumnhibnex@yahoo.com
mailto:shirleyking7@verizon.net
mailto:reynoldsstephen@hotmail.com
mailto:mzgmt00ke@yahoo.com
mailto:da_lilange17@yahoo.com
mailto:karen.ski@att.net
mailto:justin.minster@thc.texas.gov
mailto:rc.mounsey78@gmail.com
mailto:jennifer.burnum@gmail.com


37% ate at a local resturant





• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The City of Navasota, Texas 

Proclamation 

WHEREAS, the Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs (GEAR UP) 
is a federally funded, competitive grant program designed to increase the number of low-income 
students who are prepared to enter and succeed in postsecondary education; 

WHEREAS, GEAR UP serves low-income, minority, and disadvantaged students and their 
families from underserved communities who might be the first person in their family to go to college; 
and 

WHEREAS, GEAR UP provides six- or seven-year grants to states or partnerships to deliver 
support and resources to students and their families, starting no later than the 7th grade (middle 
school), through high school and onward to fulfill their dreams of attaining a postsecondary education; 
and 

WHEREAS, GEAR UP includes interventions such as tutoring, mentoring, rigorous academic 
preparation, financial education and college scholarships to improve access to higher education for low 
income, minority, and disadvantaged first-generation students and their families; and 

WHEREAS, GEAR UP is built around public-private partnerships, enlisting the formidable 
resources of government, business, and community groups to support low-income students as they 
prepare to enter and succeed in college; and 

WHEREAS, the Navasota ISD GEAR UP is a partnership of the University of Texas at Austin 
Institute of Public School Initiatives and 

WHEREAS, Navasota ISD GEAR UP serves 506 students in the 9TH and 10TH grade and their 
families and  

WHEREAS, the week of September 20th - September 24th, 2021 has been declared National 
GEAR UP Week; and 

WHEREAS, Navasota, Texas is committed to providing a quality education for all students, 
helping them to achieve their highest potential: 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Bert Miller, Mayor of Navasota, Texas, do hereby proclaim the week of September 
20th - September 24th, 2021, as 

National GEAR UP Week in the City of Navasota, Texas and I urge all citizens to join me in this 
special observance. 
 

 

                                                                          Signed this 13th day of September, 2021 

 

                                                                               _____________________________ 
                                                                         BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

                



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on request from
Christian Community Services for assistance with utility payments
for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Christian Community Services provides assistance to needy
families in Navasota, by maintaining a food pantry and some
clothing assistance.  The demand for their services is on the rise,
as are costs.  The City Council approved applying a credit towards
their monthly utility bill last year up to $200.00 per month.  This
agreement will expire on September 30, 2021.  They have
requested that the City continue this agreement, in order for them
to continue to provide their services to the needy citizens of
Navasota.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the request from the Christian
Community Services for assistance with utility payments for the
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 up to $200.00 each month.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Christian Community Services Request
2. Christian Community Services Utility Bills

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631116180x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631116208x_at.pdf
















09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   1

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

07-2882-00      CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY CENTER           814 LASALLE N                                                       0.00

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0883       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENT*     TO:   07-2882-01            4.00CR        4.00               0.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/13/2021     0884       4/13/2021    PAYMENT         3542                        6.89         10.89CR             4.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/07/2021     0885       4/07/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  31.91         25.02CR             6.89

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/07/2021     0886       4/07/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                39.05          7.14CR            31.91

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/07/2021     0887       4/07/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     54.05         15.00CR            39.05

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/07/2021     0888       4/07/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               160.38        106.33CR            54.05

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/07/2021     0889       4/07/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          208.89         48.51CR           160.38

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/25/2021     0890       3/25/2021    DEPOSIT   *     FINAL ADJUSTMENT          208.89          0.00             208.89

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/25/2021     0891       3/25/2021    BILL             2/01- 3/01 FINAL           2.00CR      210.89             208.89

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               57.40               761               844                83

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/01/2021     0892       3/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                 5.14          7.14CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/01/2021     0893       3/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     20.14         15.00CR             5.14

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/01/2021     0895       3/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  45.16         25.02CR            20.14

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/01/2021     0895       3/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT           82.16         37.00CR            45.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    3/01/2021     0895       3/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               188.49        106.33CR            82.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/26/2021     0895       2/26/2021    BILL             1/01- 2/01                 2.00CR      190.49             188.49

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   2

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

               WATER               37.00               718               761                43

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/02/2021     0895       2/02/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  23.02         25.02CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/02/2021     0895       2/02/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                30.16          7.14CR            23.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/02/2021     0895       2/02/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     45.16         15.00CR            30.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/02/2021     0895       2/02/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               151.49        106.33CR            45.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    2/02/2021     0895       2/02/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          191.55         40.06CR           151.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    1/26/2021     0895       1/26/2021    BILL            12/01- 1/01                 2.00CR      193.55             191.55

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               40.06               669               718                49

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/30/2020     0896      12/30/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  23.02         25.02CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/30/2020     0896      12/30/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                30.16          7.14CR            23.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/30/2020     0896      12/30/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     45.16         15.00CR            30.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/30/2020     0896      12/30/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               151.49        106.33CR            45.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/30/2020     0896      12/30/2020    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          191.04         39.55CR           151.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/29/2020     0896      12/29/2020    BILL            11/01-12/01                 2.00CR      193.04             191.04

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               39.55               621               669                48



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   3

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/14/2020     0896      12/14/2020    PAYMENT         3513                       19.56         21.56CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/11/2020     0896      12/11/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     34.56         15.00CR            19.56

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/11/2020     0896      12/11/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  59.58         25.02CR            34.56

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/11/2020     0896      12/11/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                66.72          7.14CR            59.58

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/11/2020     0897      12/11/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               173.05        106.33CR            66.72

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   12/11/2020     0897      12/11/2020    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          219.56         46.51CR           173.05

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   11/30/2020     0897      11/30/2020    BILL            10/01-11/01                 0.00        219.56             219.56

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               66.07               521               621               100

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/29/2020     0897      10/29/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  25.02         25.02CR             0.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/29/2020     0897      10/29/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                32.16          7.14CR            25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/29/2020     0897      10/29/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     47.16         15.00CR            32.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/29/2020     0897      10/29/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               153.49        106.33CR            47.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/29/2020     0897      10/29/2020    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          199.16         45.67CR           153.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/27/2020     0897      10/27/2020    BILL             9/01-10/01                 0.00        199.16             199.16

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   4

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

               WATER               45.67               461               521                60

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/09/2020     0897      10/09/2020    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  21.39         21.39CR             0.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/09/2020     0898      10/09/2020    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          100.99         79.60CR            21.39

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/09/2020     0898      10/09/2020    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               198.00         97.01CR           100.99

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

   10/06/2020     0898      10/06/2020    PAYMENT         3492                      246.59         48.59CR           198.00

 



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   5

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

07-2882-01      CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY CENTER           814 LASALLE N                                                       6.00

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0961       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  31.02         25.02CR             6.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0962       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  56.04         25.02CR            31.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0963       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  31.02         25.02              56.04

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0964       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                38.16          7.14CR            31.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0965       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     53.16         15.00CR            38.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0966       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               159.49        106.33CR            53.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/31/2021     0967       8/31/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          208.22         48.73CR           159.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/26/2021     0968       8/26/2021    BILL             7/01- 8/01                 2.00CR      210.22             208.22

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               48.73              1082              1148                66

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

               UCIF-WATER           4.00

               UCIF-SEWER           4.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    8/13/2021     0969       8/13/2021    PAYMENT         3571                        5.57          7.57CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/29/2021     0970       7/29/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  30.59         25.02CR             5.57

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/29/2021     0971       7/29/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                37.73          7.14CR            30.59

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/29/2021     0972       7/29/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     52.73         15.00CR            37.73

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/29/2021     0973       7/29/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               159.06        106.33CR            52.73

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/29/2021     0974       7/29/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          205.57         46.51CR           159.06

 



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   6

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

07-2882-01      CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY CENTER           814 LASALLE N                                               *CONTINUED*

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/27/2021     0975       7/27/2021    BILL             6/01- 7/01                 2.61CR      208.18             205.57

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               46.69              1020              1082                62

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

               UCIF-WATER           4.00

               UCIF-SEWER           4.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0976       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                   1.39          4.00CR             2.61CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0977       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT            5.39          4.00CR             1.39

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0978       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  30.41         25.02CR             5.39

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0979       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                37.55          7.14CR            30.41

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0980       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     52.55         15.00CR            37.55

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0981       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               158.88        106.33CR            52.55

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    7/01/2021     0982       7/01/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          196.39         37.51CR           158.88

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/28/2021     0983       6/28/2021    BILL             5/01- 6/01                 2.61CR      199.00             196.39

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               37.51               976              1020                44

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

               UCIF-WATER           4.00

               UCIF-SEWER           4.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/07/2021     0984       6/07/2021    PAYMENT         3551                        2.00          4.61CR             2.61CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0985       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                  27.02         25.02CR             2.00

 



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   7

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

07-2882-01      CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY CENTER           814 LASALLE N                                               *CONTINUED*

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0986       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ                34.16          7.14CR            27.02

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0987       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                     49.16         15.00CR            34.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0988       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               155.49        106.33CR            49.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0989       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          198.61         43.12CR           155.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    6/04/2021     0990       6/04/2021    ADJUSTMENT*     FROM: 07-2882-00          202.61          4.00CR           198.61

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/26/2021     0991       5/26/2021    BILL             4/01- 5/01                 2.00CR      204.61             202.61

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               43.12               921               976                55

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

               UCIF-WATER           4.00

               UCIF-SEWER           4.00

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0992       5/13/2021    PAYMENT         3547                       15.83         17.83CR             2.00CR

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0993       5/13/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               122.16        106.33CR            15.83

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0994       5/13/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     SEWER ADJ                 139.35         17.19CR           122.16

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0995       5/13/2021    ADJUSTMENTS     DR FEE                    154.35         15.00CR           139.35

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0996       5/13/2021    ADJUSTMENTG     GARBAGE ADJ               161.49          7.14CR           154.35

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    5/13/2021     0997       5/13/2021    ADJUSTMENTW     WATER ADJUSTMENT          215.83         54.34CR           161.49

 

    POST DATE    TRAN NO.    TRAN DATE    TYPE     FLAG   REFERENCE            BALANCE FWD        AMOUNT            BALANCE

    4/27/2021     0998       4/27/2021    BILL             3/01- 4/01 1ST BILL        0.00        215.83             215.83

                                                            BILL DETAIL____________________________________________________

               --SERVICE--         --$--     --PREV READ--     --CURR READ--   --CONSUMPTION--

               WATER               54.34               844               921                77



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   8

DATE RANGE: 10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021                        SUMMARY                                      FORMAT: SELECTED ACCOUNTS

                                                                                                                    BILL DETAIL: YES

ACCOUNT         NAME                                 SERVICE ADDRESS                                          CURRENT BALANCE_______

               GARBAGE            106.33

               ST & DRAINAGE       15.00

               GARBAGE              7.14

               SEWER               25.02

               UCIF-WATER           4.00

               UCIF-SEWER           4.00



09-08-2021 08:44 AM                             T R A N S A C T I O N   R E P O R T                                        PAGE:   9

 

                                                          SELECTION CRITERIA

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ACCOUNT SELECTIONS:

 

ACCOUNT SELECTION     SELECTED

ACCOUNT NUMBER(S)     07-2882-00, 07-2882-01

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DATE SELECTION:

 

DATE RANGE            10/01/2020 THRU  9/08/2021

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PRINT OPTIONS:

 

REV CODE DISTRIBUTION NO

BILL DETAIL           YES

SINGLE ACCT PER PAGE  NO

*** END OF TRANSACTION REPORT ***



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comments and testimony regarding a specific use permit
application submitted to the City of Navasota by Christopher
Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave,
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit
application requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck
Park, a use not listed under Article XI B-1: General Business
District. The property affected is legally described as A0002. D
Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
City staff received a specific use permit application from
Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West
Washington Ave. The proposed food truck park is not a listed use
under the B-1 Zoning district so a specific use permit is required
for approval. Specific use permits are granted to the property
owner and do not transfer if ownership changes. Attached for your
review and consideration is the proposed layout of the site.

Public hearing opened ______ p.m.

Public hearing closed ______ p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



Staff recommends conducting a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comments and testimony regarding a specific use
permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by
Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West
Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The
specific use permit application requests to allow for the
development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed under Article
XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is legally
described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report
2. Application
3. Elevations
4. Survey
5. Site Layout

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630703401x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630510977x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630511033x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630511019x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630511001x_at.pdf


  

City of Navasota  
Planning & Zoning Commission  

Staff Report 
September 1, 2021 

 
 

 
Summary: 
City staff received a specific use permit application from Christopher Komarzec for the property 
located at 1102 West Washington Ave. Food truck parks are not a listed use under the B-1 
Zoning district therefore a specific use permit is required for approval. Staff has received two 
inquires in the days leading up to the meeting from surrounding residents that received our 
public hearing notification letter. Everyone staff has spoken to is not opposed with what is 
being proposed. Attached for your review and consideration is the application and proposed 
layout of the site. 
 
Direct Ordinance References: 
Use Permit review allows for the City Council, upon recommendations from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, the discretionary approval of uses with unique or widely-varying operating 
characteristics or unusual site development features, subject to the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Ordinance. Specific uses are not generally compatible with those uses permitted by 
right in the zoning district, but by the unusual circumstances (existing uses and historic uses) in 
the area, consideration of the use is advisable. Such uses are granted to the owner of the 
property and are not transferable with the sale of the property. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission, in considering and determining their recommendation to 
the City Council regarding requests for Use Permits, may require plans, information, operating 
data, and expert evaluations concerning the location, function, and characteristics of proposed 
buildings or uses.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission and/or the City Council may impose additional reasonable 
restrictions or conditions to carry out the spirit of intent of this Ordinance and to mitigate 
adverse effects of the proposed use. These requirements may include, but are not limited to, 
increased open space, loading and parking requirements, suitable landscaping, and additional 
improvements such as curbing and sidewalks. 
  
Property Information: 
PID: R10304 
Legal Description: A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 19, PAR 22, ACRES 0.36 
Owner: KOMARZEC, CHRISTOPHER 
Address: 1106 W WASHINGTON AVE, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
Zoning: B-1 
Current Land Use: Vacant 
Proposed Land Use: Food Truck Park 
Applicant\Project Rep: Christopher Komarzec 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=navasotaset&collection=navasota&doccode=z2Code_z20000820


Aerial & Street view: 

 

 

 



 























ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 977-21, approving a specific use permit application
submitted to the City of Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for
the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave, Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application
requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use
not listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The
property affected is legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract
19, Par 12.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
City staff received a specific use permit application from
Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West
Washington Ave. The proposed food truck park is not a listed use
under the B-1 Zoning district so a specific use permit is required
for approval. Specific use permits are granted to the property
owner and do not transfer if ownership changes. Attached for your
review and consideration is the proposed layout of the site.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance
No. 977-21, approving a specific use permit application submitted
to the City of Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for the property
located at 1102 West Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application requests to
allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed
under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property
affected is legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 977-21

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631045618x_at.pdf


1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 977-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP GRANTING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT TO 
CHRISTOPHER KOMARZEC FOR A FOOD VENDOR PARK FOR FOOD 
TRUCKS AND TRAILERS ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1102 W. 
WASHINGTON AVE., LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS 0.36 ACRES OF LAND, 
LYING AND BEING SITUATED IN THE D. ARNOLD LEAGUE, A-2, GRIMES 
COUNTY, TEXAS, SITUATED IN THE H&TC RR ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME D, 
PAGE 777, DEED RECORDS OF GRIMES COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE FULLY DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND 
INCORPORATED HEREIN FOR ALL PURPOSES PERTINENT; PROVIDING 
FOR CONDITIONS RELATED TO THE SPECIFIC USE PERMIT; PROVIDING 
FOR AMENDMENT, CHANGE OR RESCISSION OF THE SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of July, 2021, Crhistopher Komarzec 
submitted an application for a specific use permit, to allow for the development 
of a food vendor park for food trucks and food trailers, for the property located 
at 1102 W. Washington Ave., legally described as 0.36 acres of land, lying and 
being situated in the D. ARNOLD LEAGUE, A-2, Grimes County, Texas, situated in 
the H&TC RR Addition to the City of Navasota, Texas, according to the Plat 
recorded in Volume D, Page 777, Deed Records of Grimes County, Texas, and 
being more fully described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes pertinent (the “Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 9th day of September, 2021, a public hearing was held 
before the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum 
being present on the occasion and said matter of a specific use permit being part 
of the agenda for said Commission meeting, an opportunity to present 
arguments for and against the proposed specific use permit was held regarding 
the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the City 
Council that the requested specific use permit be granted to Christopher 
Komarzec allowing Mr. Komarzec to develop a food vendor park for food trucks 
and food trailers in the B-1: General Business District, specifically for the 
Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 13th day of September, 2021, a public hearing was held 
before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on the occasion and 
said matter of the specific use permit being part of the agenda, an opportunity to 



2 

 

present arguments for and against the proposed specific use permit for the 
Property was held; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Navasota, Texas that: 

 
SECTION 1.  
 
The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to show 
that a specific use permit is granted to  Christopher Komarzec for the development 
of a food vendor park for food trucks and food trailers on the Property located at 
1102 W Washington Ave., Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. Said 
development of the Property must comply with the applicable City of Navasota 
Building Codes, Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable ordinances and 
regulations. Said Property is located in the B-1: General Business Zoning District 
and requires the approval of a specific use permit to allow for the development of 
a food vendor park for food trucks and food trailers, a use not permitted as a 
matter of right in a B-1: General Business Zoning District. 
 
SECTION 2.  
 
The development of the Property shall be in accordance with the following special 
conditions, restrictions and regulations:   
 

a) No development or expansion is required for this use. 
b) The Property and its use shall comply with all ordinances, regulations and 

codes of the City of Navasota. 
c) Food trucks and food trailers are permitted to remain and operate on the 

Property for the duration of time that the specific use permit is validly in 
effect. 

d) Permitted electric power outlets and water connections necessary to service 
the food trucks/food trailers will be installed on the Property within six (6) 
months after the effective date of this Ordinance. The electric power outlets 
and water connections necessary to service the food trucks/food trailers on 
the Property shall be installed in accordance with all applicable ordinances, 
regulations and codes. 

e) Outdoor and Indoor climate-controlled eating areas and sufficient bathroom 
facilities will be provided on the Property for use by customers and vendors. 

f) Operating Hours on the Property will be from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 3.  
 
Upon holding a properly notified public hearing, the City Council may amend, 
change, or rescind the Specific Use Permit granted by this Ordinance if: 



3 

 

a) There is a violation and conviction of any of the provisions of this Ordinance, 
or any ordinance of the City of Navasota, that occurs on the Property; 

b) There is a violation of any provision of the terms and conditions of the 
Specific Use Permit granted by this Ordinance; or 

c) As otherwise permitted by law and/or Navasota’s Zoning Ordinance, as it 
exists or may be amended.  

 
SECTION 4.  
 
This Ordinance shall take effect as provided by the Charter of the City of Navasota, 
Texas and applicable law. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 13th DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                                 ______________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 
27TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                                 ______________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 



4 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on engineering
agreement with Strand Associates for the 2021 Gas System Model
Development.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City has experienced substantial growth, and the natural gas
system has not bee evaluated to determine if there is a need for
new mains, new regulator stations or increased pressures and
volumes.  Staff met with Strand Associates to prepare proposals
for modeling the system to determine needs of the system to
meet the growth demands.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Engineer Agreement: $25,000
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends  approval of the engineer agreement with
Strand Associates for the 2021 Gas System Model Development in
the amount of $25,000.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Gas Model

Jennifer Reyna, Utility Administrative
Assistant

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631285643x_at.pdf




















ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of
engineering agreement with Strand Associates for the 2021
Hollister Gas Regulator Station Replacement Project.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The gas regulator station on Hollister street is undersized, and the
regulators are old and need to be replaced.  The station is also
located very close to the street which creates concerns of damage
by a motor vehicle.  The regulator station also serves the area on
the west side of town, which is experiencing growth and higher
demands.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Engineer Agreement: $70,000
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval on the engineering agreement with
Strand Associates for the 2021 Hollister Gas Regulator
Replacement Project in the amount of $70,000.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Hollister Gas Regulastor

Jennifer Reyna, Utility Administrative
Assistant

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631285716x_at.pdf






















ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Public Hearing on the proposed budget for the City of
Navasota for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The proposed budget has been on file with the City Secretary and
available for inspection since August 09, 2021.  Notice of this
hearing was published as required.  During this public hearing any
taxpayers must be afforded the opportunity to address any part of
the proposed budget.

Once the public hearing is concluded, the comments from the
public need to be recapped to reflect any changes suggested.

The public hearing was opened at ___________p.m.

The public hearing was closed at ____________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting the public hearing.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proposed Budget

Lance M Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630502512x_at.pdf


















































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 975-21, adopting the budget for the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The proposed budget for FY 2021-2022  was presented to the City
Council on 07/12/2021. The Council held workshops on the
proposed budget during meetings on 07/12/2021, 08/09/2021,
and 08-23-2021
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
975-21, adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning October
1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022.

A SHOW OF HANDS IS NEEDED FOR THIS ITEM.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 975-21

Lance M Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629992400x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 975-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

FOR THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and Article VIII, Section 
2 of the City Charter of the City of Navasota, the City Manager of Navasota 
prepared this budget covering income and expenditures for the fiscal year 2021-
2022, and caused Notice of Hearing on same to be published as required by law; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, public hearings were held by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, on said proposed budget on September 13, 2021 and 
September 27, 2021, at which time said budget was fully considered, and 
interested taxpayers were heard by said City Council, which said proposed 
budget with changes are made a part thereof; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the budget hereto attached, is made a part hereof, and 
hereby approved as the official budget covering the City of Navasota’s operation 
during the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 
2022, and income and expenditures of the said city and during such time shall be 
on the basis of said budget. 
 

SECTION 2.  That the City Manager and/or Finance Director is authorized to 
invest any funds not needed for current use, whether operating funds or bond 
funds, as approved by the City of Navasota Investment Policy and in accordance 
with State Law. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to make 

intra and inter department fund transfers during the fiscal year as becomes 
necessary in order to avoid over expenditure of a particular budget item. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 13TH DAY 
OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
 
                                                              ______________________ 
                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THE SECOND AND FINAL 
READING THIS THE 27TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
                 
                                                            ______________________ 
                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
                                         
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Public Hearing on proposal to increase the tax rate for
2021.

.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Public Hearing on a proposal to increase total tax revenues from
properties on the tax roll in the preceding year by 8.75  percent
(percentage by which the proposed tax rate exceeds the lower of
the rollback tax rate or the effective rate calculated under Chapter
26 , Tax Code).

"The City Council of the City of Navasota is scheduled to vote on
the tax rate that will result in that tax increase at a public meeting
at 6:00 P.M. on September 13, 2021 at the City Council Chambers
located at 200 East McAlpine Street for first reading; and a public
meeting at 6:00 P.M. on September 27, 2021 at the City Council
Chambers located at 200 East McAlpine Street for second reading.

Public hearing opened at ______p.m.

Public hearing closed at _______p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing.

Lance M Hall, Finance Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Tax Calculation
2. GCAD Certification

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631116442x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630502749x_at.pdf


0

Taxable Value Rate Taxable Dollars General fund %eneral Fund Amou 96% collect
No New $508,297,370.00 0.5510 $2,800,718.51 88% $2,453,043.11 $2,354,921.38

Revenue Rate 12% $347,675.40 $333,768.39
M&O 0.4826 $2,453,043.11

Debt Rate 0.0684 $347,675.40
$2,800,718.51 $2,800,718.51 $2,688,689.77

Voter Approved $508,297,370.00 0.5948 $3,023,352.76 89% $2,675,677.36 $2,568,650.26 $213,728.88
rate 11% $347,675.40 $333,768.39

M&O 0.5264 $2,675,677.36
Debt Rate 0.0684 $347,675.40

$3,023,352.76 $3,023,352.76 $2,902,418.65

De mInimus $508,297,370.00 0.6428 $3,267,335.49 89% $2,919,660.09 $2,802,873.69 $447,952.31
rate 11% $347,675.40 $333,768.39

M&O 0.5744 $2,919,660.09
Debt Rate 0.0684 $347,675.40

$3,267,335.49 $3,267,335.49 $3,136,642.07

last year $476,175,357.00 0.5693 $2,710,866.31 86% $2,338,973.35 $2,253,569.00 -$101,352.38
rate2020-2021 14% $371,892.95 $362,190.00

M&O 0.4912 $2,338,973.35
Debt Rate 0.0781 $371,892.95

$2,710,866.31 $2,710,866.31 $2,615,759.00

Proposed Rate $508,297,370.00 0.5693 $2,893,736.93 88% $2,546,061.53 $2,444,219.07 $89,297.68
#1 12% $347,675.40 $333,768.39

M&O 0.5009 $2,546,061.53
Debt Rate 0.0684 $347,675.40

$2,893,736.93 $2,893,736.93 $2,777,987.45

Proposed Rate $508,297,370.00 0.5947 $3,022,844.46 88% $2,675,169.06 $2,568,162.30 $213,240.91
#2 12% $347,675.40 $333,768.39

M&O 0.5263 $2,675,169.06
Debt Rate 0.0684 $347,675.40

$3,022,844.46 $3,022,844.46 $2,901,930.68

City Of Navasota Proposed Tax Rate Worksheet









































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 976-21, levying taxes for the City of Navasota and
establishing the rate of taxation and the percentage of actual
value of the property taxes to be used for and during the 2021 tax
year.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The proposed ad valorem tax rate for the City of Navasota is
$.5693 per $100 valuation.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
The rate for the interest and sinking fund is set at $.0684 per
$100 valuation, and the maintenance and operation rate is $.5009
per $100 valuation. This rate is expected to
generate $2,893,736.93 with $347,675.40 of this figure dedicated
to the interest and sinking fund.

                
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lance M Hall, Finance Director



Staff recommends the following wording be used in order to adopt
the tax rate ordinance: “I move that the property tax rate be
increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $.5693 which is
effectively a 3.32 percent increase in the tax rate and
approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 976-21, levying
taxes for the City of Navasota and establishing the rate of
taxation and the percentage of actual value of the property
to be used for and during the 2021 tax year.

A SHOW OF HANDS IS NEEDED FOR THIS ITEM
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 976-21

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629992226x_at.pdf


  

ORDINANCE NO. 976-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR THE SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS ESTABLISHING THE RATE OF TAXATION AND THE 
PERCENTAGE OF ACTUAL VALUE OF THE PROPERTY TO BE USED, FOR 

AND DURING THE 2021 TAX YEAR, AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF CERTAIN BONDED INDEBTEDNESS, TOGETHER WITH 

REQUIRED INTEREST AND SINKING FUNDS, AND PROVIDING FOR A 
LIEN ON REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TO SECURE THE PAYMENT 

OF TAXES ASSESSED, REPEALED ALL ORDINANCES, OR PART OF 
ORDINANCES CONFLICTING HEREWITH. 

 
     THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  There is hereby levied and shall be collected for all lawful 
purposes for the 2021 tax year an Ad Valorem tax rate of ($.5693) on the one 
hundred dollar ($100.00) cash value thereof in lawful currency of the United 
States on all property real or personal, owned in this city on the 1st day of 
January 2021 A.D., except so much as may be exempted by the Constitution and 
laws of this State and the United States.  Said cash value to be established in the 
manner prescribed by law. 

It is further ordered that levy of the tax shall be collected on the basis of 100 
percent (100%) of the actual market value legally established on all property 
both real and personal. 

The said above tax levy shall be budgeted in the approximate amounts listed 
below: 

 

                         GENERAL FUND    $0.5009 

           INTEREST AND SINKING FUND  $0.0684 

     TOTAL TAX RATE PER $100.00  $0.5693 
 

SECTION 2.  That all taxes collected by the Grimes County Appraisal District 
on behalf of the City and Districts for which it is collecting taxes, shall be payable 
on October 1 and if such taxes are not paid in full on or before January 31, of 
the succeeding year, the following penalties shall be payable. 

During the month of February, seven percent (7%); during the month of 
March, nine percent (9%); during the month of April, eleven percent (11%); 
during the month of May, thirteen percent (13%); during the month of June, 
fifteen percent (15%); and after the first day of July, eighteen percent (18%) 
and all delinquent taxes shall bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) each 



  

month thereafter, until paid.  Also there shall be an attorney’s fee of fifteen 
percent (15%) collected according to Chapter 11 Article 11.02 Property Tax Sec 
11.02.01 Charges for collection of delinquent taxes, Subsection (f) in the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Navasota 
 

SECTION 3.  There is hereby fixed on each and every item of taxable 
property a lien for the purpose of securing the certain payment of taxes 
assessed, against any item of property against which a tax is assessed hereunder 
until such tax together with all interest, shall be paid. 

 
SECTION 4. “THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR 

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE.  
THE TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 5.21% PERCENT AND WILL 
RAISE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 HOME 
BY $9.70. 

 
SECTION 5.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict 

with the provisions of the ordinance shall be and the same are hereby expressly 
repealed. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 13TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                            _______________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS 
THE 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021       
 
 
                     
                                                            _______________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 14. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on ratifying the tax
increase reflected in the budget for FY 2021-2022.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Texas Statutes Local Government Code, Section 102.007
Adoption of Budget, Subsection (c) states that adoption of
a budget that will require more revenue from property taxes than
in the previous years requires a separate vote of the general body
to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the budget.  A vote
under this subsection is in addition to and separate from the vote
to adopt the budget or a vote to set the tax rate required by
Chapter 26, Tax Code, or other law.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends ratifying the tax increase reflected in the
budget for FY 2021-2022.

A SHOW OF HANDS IS NEEDED FOR THIS ITEM.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Lance Hall, Finance Director



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 15. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on purchasing an ad in
the Insight Magazine using Hotel/Motel funds.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Insite Magazine is offering an opportunity for hotels and B&B's to
advertise for a 10 issue commitment.  The cost is $25 for 5 lines
per issue.  The City has the opportunity to advertise for all hotels
inside the city by utilizing Hotel Occupancy Tax funds.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
5 hotels @ $25 x 10 issues = $1250
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends authorization to advertise all hotels that are
inside the city limits and utilize Hotel Occupancy Tax to fund the
advertisements.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Insight Magazine Ad Info

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631121550x_at.pdf








ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 16. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the
Assessment/Collection contract for the taxing year 2021 with the
Grimes County Central Appraisal District.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Grimes County Appraisal District currently performs property
tax assessment and collections for the City of Navasota. The
agreement is an annual agreement that is effective from January
1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
The budget includes funding for these services.

$ 14382 for Tax Assessment/Collection fees. Last Year $11,490. 
A $2,892 difference

$ 68,831  for Appraisal Fees. Last Year $62,439.  A $6,392
difference
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Assessment/Collection contract
for the 2022 Tax Year with the Grimes County Appraisal District.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2022 Tax Assessment Collection Contract GCAD

Lance Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1630440557x_at.pdf








ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 17. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month
of August 2021;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of August 2021;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 972-21, approving a voluntary annexation request
submitted by Paul Hammock for a 42.381-acre tract of land in the
Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 973-21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article
13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Section 13.02.011 Extension of
Main Lines and Service Lines, of the code of ordinances, City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purpose of
adopting warranty regulations on public improvements dedicated
to the City; and

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 974-21, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A
Zoning Ordinance, Article II Districts, District Boundaries, Official
Zoning Map, New Uses, and Compliance, 2.5 Compliance
Required, of the code of ordinances of the City of Navasota,
Texas, adding public improvement warranty provisions.

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
includes the minutes and expenditures for the month of August
2021; the second reading of Ordinance No. 972-21, approving a
voluntary annexation request submitted by Paul Hammock for a
42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55,
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas; the second reading of
Ordinance No. 973-21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article
13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Section 13.02.011 Extension of
Main Lines and Service Lines, of the code of ordinances, City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purpose of
adopting warranty regulations on public improvements dedicated
to the City; and the second reading of Ordinance No. 974-21,
amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article
II Districts, District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New Uses,
and Compliance, 2.5 Compliance Required, of the code of
ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, adding public
improvement warranty provisions.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes - 08/09/2021
2. Minutes - 08/10/2021 - Special
3. Minutes - 08/23/2021
4. Minutes - 08/30/2021 - Special
5. Expenditures for August 2021
6. Ordinance No. 972-21
7. Ordinance No. 973-21
8. Ordinance No. 974-21

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631044225x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631044256x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631044288x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631044314x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631044187x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629993155x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629993177x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1629993208x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 9, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Rayna 

Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist; Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, 

Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, Finance Director; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets and 

Sanitation; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; 

Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Tiffany Sammon, Librarian and Jonathan 

Baughman, Legal Counsel. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Brittany Husfeld, Philip Cox, Mac Vaughn, Deborah Richardson, 

YoLanda Fultz, John Henry, Jeff Robertson, Jennifer Myatt, Jett Hall, Fred Patterson, Eric Todd, 

Paul Hammock, Brian McDonald, Thomas Pade, Kathy Massey and Grayson Cox. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and visitors 

then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

a) Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink gave an update on the Navasota 

Economic Development Corporation; 

 

b) John Henry gave an update on the Capital Improvements Project; 

 

c) Library Director Tiffany Sammon gave an update on the Library activites; 

 



d) There was not an update on Boards and Commissions; and 

 

g) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5. The City Council went into Executive Session in accordance with the Texas 

Government Code, Section 551.071, consultation with Attorney, regarding the bids that 

were received on the 2021 Downtown Revitalization Program.  The time was 6:17 p.m. 

 

The City Council reconvened in open session at 6:38 p.m. 

 

Councilmember Pattie Pederson moved to reject all bids and rebid the project, seconded 

by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

6.  Jett Hell, with Strand and Associates, gave an update on the Thoroughfare Plan and 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan. 

 

7.  A public hearing was held regarding a zoning change application submitted to the 

City of Navasota by Jarvis Tire and Wheel LLC, for the property located near North 

LaSalle/Millican Street and Laredo Street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas  77868.  The 

zoning change application request to change the zoning from Article XI B-1:  General 

Business District to Hidden Hills PUD, a planned unit development, for the development 

of a 103-lot, single dwelling residential subdivision.  The property affected is legally 

described as A0002, D. Arnold, Tract 11, Par 10, Acres 17.175.  Mayor Bert Miller 

opened the public hearing at 7:00 p.m.  With no comments from the public, Mayor Bert 

Miller closed the pubic hearing at 7:09 p.m. 

 

8.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 969-

21, a zoning change from Article XI B-1:  General Business District to Hidden Hills PUD, 

a planned unit development, for the development of a 103-lot, single dwelling residential 

subdivision.  The property affected is legally described as A0002, D. Arnold, Tract 11, 

Par 10, Acres 17.175, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

9.  A public hearing was held regarding a conditional use permit application submitted to 

the City of Navasota by Brazos Valley Community Action Agency, Inc., dba HealthPoint 

(BVCAA) for the property located at 8310 State Highway 6, Navasota, Grimes County, 

Texas, 77868. The conditional use permit application requests to allow for the 

development of a medical clinic, a conditional use listed under Article XI B-1: General 

Business District. The property affected is legally described as S1100 - Acklam Acres, Lot 

1-5, Acres 1.5.  Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 7:12 p.m. With no 

comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 7:19 p.m. With 

no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 7:19 p.m. 

 



10.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 

970-21, a conditional use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by Brazos 

Valley Community Action Agency, Inc., dba HealthPoint (BVCAA) for the property located 

at 8310 State Highway 6, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The conditional use 

permit application requests to allow for the development of a medical clinic, a 

conditional use listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property 

affected is legally described as S1100 - Acklam Acres, Lot 1-5, Acres 1.5, seconded by 

Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

11. A public hearing was held regarding an application submitted by Sebastian Murillo 

Rubio to abandon a forty-one foot (41') section of Allen Street right-of-way and a twenty 

foot (20') alleyway located in Block 15 of the Lasker Subdivision, in the City of Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas.  Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m.  With 

no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 7:23 p.m. 

 

12.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 

971-21, vacating a forty-one foot (41') section of Allen Street right-of-way and a twenty 

foot (20') alleyway located in Block 15 of the Lasker Subdivision, in the City of Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

13.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 698-21, annexation of 

a 42.381 acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, 

Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public hearing on a proposed annexation of 

said property by the City of Navasota, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

14.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve a lease agreement with Larry and 

Mildred Wood for grazing and baling purposes at the close landfill site for $30 per acre 

annually, and to remove Item 22, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

15.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the minutes and expenditures for 

the month of July 2021, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

16.  The City Council met in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas 

Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic development 

negotiations with J & H Navasota Development, LLC regarding a potential Development 

Agreement.  The time was 7:32 p.m. 

 

17. The City Council met in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.071, Texas 

Government Code - Consultation with Attorney - Dispute regarding invoice received from 



Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the 

month of February 2021, and associated matters. 

 

The time was 7:32 p.m. 

 

18.  The City Council reconvened in open session at 8:41 p.m. 

 

19.  The City Council did not take any action on the Development Agreement with J & H 

Navasota Development, LLC. 

 

20.  The City Council did not take any action on the dispute regarding invoice received 

from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota 

for the month of February 2021 and associated matters. 

 

21. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:44 p.m. 

 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

AUGUST 10, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative 

Assistant; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; and Colton Haffey, Parks and 

Recreation Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  Barbara and David Alley, Philip Cox, Mac Vaughn, Deborah Richardson, 

Geoff Horn, Julie Horn, Betsy Lehnert, Connie Clements, Brandi Tejeda, Dia Copeland, 

Jeff Held, Jayce April, Mitch Bertone, Karen Hughes, Jo Crawford, Lari Oubre, Cory 

DeLong and Lynda Lipscomb. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.  The Invocation, the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 

Flag was dispensed. 

 

3.  A public meeting was held to review the final drafts form Strand and 

Associates on the Thoroughfare Plan and the Pedestrian and Bicycle System 

Plan. 

 

4.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 

 

 



                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 23, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Luke Cochran, Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Shawn Myatt, Police 

Chief/Assistant City Manager; and Colton Haffey, Parks and Recreation Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Paul Hammock, YoLanda Fultz, Mac Vaughn, Deborah 

Richardson, B. J. Moody, Mike Callahan, Karen Hughes, Nancy Vidotto, Betty Dunn, 

Rebecca Cole and Shannon (Virtually). 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and 

visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 

Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

a) City Manager Brad Stafford and the City Council recognized Jessie West for 15 

years of service to the City of Navasota; 

 



b) City Manager Brad Stafford recognized Administrative Assistant Jennifer Reyna 

for being a graduate from the Texas Municipal Clerks Certification program; 

 

c) Parks and Recreation Specialist Colton Haffey gave an update on the Parks 

Department; 

 

d) There was not an update on the Arts Council quarterly report; 

 

e) There was not an update on Boards and Commissions; and 

 

f) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the installation of a dog park at 

August Horst Park and to fund the project through the voluntary park fund in the 

amount of $15,662, to be included in the 2021-2022 budget, seconded by 

Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

6.  A public hearing was held regarding a voluntary annexation request 

submitted by Paul Hammock for a 42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler 

Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.  Mayor Bert Miller opened the 

public hearing at 6:19 p.m.  With no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller 

closed the public hearing at 6:21 p.m. 

 

7.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

No. 972-21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by Paul 

Hammock for a 42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8.  A public hearing was held regarding a proposed zoning amendment initiated 

by the City of Navasota, amending Chapter 14 zoning, Exhibit A Zoning 

Ordinance, Article II Districts, District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New 

Ones, and Compliance, 2.5 Compliance Required, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Navasota, Texas, adding public improvement warranty provisions.  

Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 6:22 p.m.  With no comments 

from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. 

 

9.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of 

Ordinance No. 974-21, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A, Zoning 

Ordinance, Article II Districts, District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New Uses, 



and Compliance, 2.5 Compliance Required, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Navasota, Texas, adding public improvement warranty provisions, seconded 

by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

10. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

No. 973-21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.02 Rates, Charges and 

Cost, Section 13.02.011 Extension of Main Lines and Service Lines, of the Code 

of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purposes 

of adopting regulations requiring a warranty on public improvements dedicated 

to the City, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

11.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the School Resource Officer 

contract with Navasota Independent School District with the changes mentioned, 

seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

12.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 699-21, 

nominating Kathleen Terrell for a position on the Board of Directors of the 

Grimes County Appraisal District, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner 

and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

13.  A workshop was held on the proposed budget for FY 2021-2022. 

 

14. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved that the City of Navasota propose to adopt 

a tax rate of $.5693 per $100 valuation for the Tax Year 2021 and hold a public 

hearing at 6:00 P.M. on September 13, 2021 at the City Council Chambers 

located at 200 East McAlpine Street; and a second public hearing at 6:00 P.M. on 

September 27, 2021 at the City Council Chambers located at 200 East McAlpine 

Street; and a meeting to adopt the tax rate on first reading at 6:00 P.M. on 

September 13, 2021 at the City Council Chambers located at 200 East McAlpine 

Street; and a meeting to adopt the tax rate on second reading at 6:00 P.M. on 

September 27, 2021 at the City Council Chambers located at 200 East McAlpine 

Street; seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

15.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items 

which include the (a) the second reading of Ordinance No. 969-21, a zoning 

change from Article XI B-1:  General Business District to Hidden Hills PUD, a 

planned unit development, for the development of a 103-lot, single dwelling 



residential subdivision.  The property affected is legally described as A0002, D. 

Arnold, Tract 11, Par 10, Acres 17.175; (b) the second reading of Ordinance No. 

970-21, a conditional use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by 

Brazos Valley Community Action Agency, Inc., dba HealthPoint (BVCAA) for the 

property located at 8310 State Highway 6, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 

77868. The conditional use permit application requests to allow for the 

development of a medical clinic, a conditional use listed under Article XI B-1: 

General Business District, and (c) the second reading of Ordinance No. 971-21, 

vacating a forty-one foot (41') section of Allen Street right-of-way and a twenty 

foot (20') alleyway located in Block 15 of the Lasker Subdivision, in the City of 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

21. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

AUGUST 30, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 5:30 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 (Virtually) 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; and Lupe 

Diosdado, Development Services Director. 

 

VISITORS:  Michael Dearing and Scott Beddingfield. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.  The Invocation, the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag 

was dispensed. 

 

3.  Remarks of Visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 700-21, for the 

installation of an Automated Weather Observing System at the Navasota Municipal 

Airport, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember 

present voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

4.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt adjourned the meeting at 5:34 p.m. 

                                      

                                                             ___________________________ 

                                                                    BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MONTHLY BUDGET SUMMARY AS OF AUGUST 2021

FUND REV BUDGET YTD REV % BUD EXP BUDGET YTD EXP % BUD BALANCE

General 11,555,653.00$ 10,113,807.28$  88% 11,555,653.00$ 8,358,439.12$    72% $1,755,368.16
Water 1,862,000.00$   1,931,269.96$    104% 1,862,000.00$   # 1,472,296.19$    79% $458,973.77

Utility Cap IMP 290,000.00$      276,502.86$       95% 290,000.00$      265,833.37$       92% $10,669.49
Gas 2,972,000.00$   2,362,058.99$    79% 2,972,000.00$   2,490,450.72$    84% ($128,391.73)

Sewer 2,077,500.00$   1,406,858.68$    68% 2,077,500.00$   1,124,199.20$    54% $282,659.48

cemetery perm 3,000.00$          1,543.74$           0% 3,000.00$          -$                    0% $1,543.74
cemetery oper 65,000.00$        92,725.88$         143% 65,000.00$        5,564.00$           9% $87,161.88

Grant Fund 3,558,500.00$   3,246,023.27$    91% 3,558,500.00$   1,810,383.74$    51% $1,435,639.53
Hotel Occupancy 141,000.00$      110,354.33$       78% 141,000.00$      -$                    0% $110,354.33

Bond Fund 1,250,143.00$   1,147,737.26$    92% 1,250,143.00$   1,330,499.40$    0 106% ($182,762.14)

GRAND TOTAL
19,926,296.00$ 17,166,356.12$ 86% 19,926,296.00$ 14,781,448.63$ 74% $2,455,771.56

Capital Projects 10,000,000.00$  10,020,735.05$  100% 10,000,000.00$  425,964.09$       4% $9,594,770.96

EDC 686,000.00$       257,848.46$       38% 686,000.00$       211,692.39$       31% $46,156.07

Foundation 5,500.00$           12,250.12$         223% 5,500.00$           -$                    0% $12,250.12











































































































 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 972-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY 
OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY 42.381 ACRES OF LAND, HEREINAFTER MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
FOR ALL MUNICIPAL PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL 
NECESSARY AND REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN 
SATISFIED; PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A 
PART OF THE CITY AND THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF 
ANY, SHALL BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND 
ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality as 

defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government 

Code, authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in accordance with the 

procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the property 

owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous to the 

present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and on the City’s 

website and the public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with applicable 



 

 2 

law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas and the property owner negotiated and 

executed a Service Plan Agreement for the extension of municipal services into the area 

to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given and held 

as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the period of 

time as prescribed by law;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed to the 

City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines and limits of 

the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the said area of land, 

which is described as follows: 

All that certain 42.381 acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes 

County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein for all purposes.  

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed to the 

City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of said citizens of 

the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, codes, 

resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 



 

 3 

Section 3. That the Service Plan Agreement which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “B” is hereby incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, Texas, 

heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to include the 

aforementioned area as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to perform 

or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of the City of 

Navasota, Texas to add the territory hereby annexed as required by law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a certified 

copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform all other acts 

necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation of territory by this 

Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or 

provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or if any 

portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of Navasota, Texas, 

for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, 

subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of this Ordinance or the 

application of any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or 

provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The City Council declares that it would 

have adopted the valid portions and applications of this Ordinance and would have 

annexed the valid property without the invalid part, and as to this end the provisions of 

this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered and 



 

 4 

enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, and that 

notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was given as required by 

the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 23RD DAY OF AUGUST, 2021. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 13TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                       BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 
 
        
 









 
 

 “EXHIBIT B” 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

 

 ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN AGREEMENT 

 

Introduction: 

 

Pursuant to the Local Government Code, Chapter 43, Section 43.0672, the City of Navasota has 

prepared this service plan agreement for the delivery of municipal services to the territory being 

proposed for annexation to the City. The area proposed for annexation consists of one tract of 

land containing a total of 42.381 acres.  The area proposed for annexation is located on and along 

the western city limits line.  The annexation of these properties is requested by Paul Hammock, 

by a petition dated July 15, 2021. The property boundaries are contiguous with the existing city 

limits and are entirely within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). There are no industrial 

businesses in this area. The land is Agricultural Open (AO) in all areas and is adjacent to the 

municipal airport.   

 

FOR SERVICES ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION: 

 

1. POLICE PROTECTION 

 

The City of Navasota, Texas, and its Police Department will provide police protection to 

the newly annexed area at the same or similar level of service now being provided to 

other areas of the City of Navasota, Texas, with similar topography, land use and 

population density within the newly annexed area. 

 

2. FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

 

The City of Navasota, Texas, is presently serviced by the Navasota Fire Department, 

which will provide fire protection and emergency medical services to the newly annexed 

tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City 

of Navasota, Texas, with similar topography, land use and population density within the 

City. 

 

3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 

 

At the present time the City of Navasota, Texas, is using a franchised contractor for 

collection of solid waste and refuse within the city limits of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Upon payment of any required deposits and the agreement to pay lawful service fees and 

charges, solid waste collection will be provided to citizens in the newly annexed area to 

the extent that the City’s contractor has access to the area to be serviced. 

 

4. MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTE WATER FACILITIES 

 

Any and all water and wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City of Navasota, 

Texas, and situated in the area at the time of the proposed annexation shall continue to be 



 
 2. 

maintained by the City of Navasota, Texas. Any and all water facilities which may be 

acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed area shall be maintained by the 

City of Navasota, Texas, to the extent of its ownership. The now existing water and 

wastewater mains at their existing locations shall be available for point of use extension 

based upon the current City’s standard water and wastewater extension policies now 

existing or as may be amended. 

 

5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 

roads or streets now located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such 

roads or streets do exist and are public facilities owned by or dedicated to the City of 

Navasota, Texas, the City will maintain such areas to the same extent and degree that it 

maintains roads and streets and other similar facilities of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Any and all roads or streets which have been dedicated to and accepted by the City of 

Navasota, Texas, or which are owned by the City of Navasota, Texas, shall be maintained 

to the same degree and extent that other roads and streets are maintained in areas with 

similar topography, land use and population density. Any and all lighting of road and 

streets which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or utility company easement 

shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the City of Navasota, 

Texas, pursuant to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 

 

6. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 

parks, playgrounds or public swimming pools now located in the area proposed for 

annexation. In the event any such parks, playgrounds or swimming pools do exist and are 

public facilities, the City of Navasota, Texas, will maintain such areas to the same extent 

and degree that it maintains parks, playgrounds and swimming pools and other similar 

areas of the City now incorporated in the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

 

7. MAINTENANCE OF ANY PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 

publicly owned facility, building or other municipal service now located in the area 

proposed for annexation. In the event any such publicly owned facility, building or 

municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City of Navasota, Texas, will 

maintain such areas to the same extent and degree that it maintains publicly owned 

facilities, buildings or municipal services of the City now incorporated in the City of 

Navasota, Texas. 

 

CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BEGIN WITHIN 2-1/2 

YEARS: 

 

1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION & SOLID WASTE 

COLLECTION 



 
 3. 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, finds and determines it to be 

unnecessary to acquire or construct any capital improvement within 2-1/2 years of the 

effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed area for the purposes of 

providing police protection, fire protection or solid waste collection. The City Council 

finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities to provide the same 

type, kind and level of protection and service which is presently being administered to 

other areas already incorporated in the City of Navasota, Texas, with the same or similar 

topography, land use and population density. 

 

2. WATER FACILITIES 

 

For the next 2-½ years the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, believes that City 

water and wastewater mains exist for points of connection for serviceable extensions to 

provide water and wastewater service within the area to be annexed pursuant to the City’s 

standard water extension policies now in existence or as may be amended by the City 

Council. 

 

3. ROADS AND STREETS 

 

Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the 

maintenance provided by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar 

topography, land use and population density.  

 

4. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS, AND SWIMMING POOLS, 

AND THE MAINTENANCE OF ANY OTHER PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY, 

BUILDING OR SERVICE 

 

To the extent that it becomes necessary because of development demands, population 

growth, and a bona fide need, the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, will 

undertake to provide any such facility which it deems necessary to adequately provide for 

the health and safety of the citizens of the newly incorporated area based upon the 

standard considerations of topography, land use and population density. 

  

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed 

Service Plan will not provide any fewer services, and it will not provide a lower level of service 

in the area proposed to be annexed than were in existence in the proposed area at the time 

immediately preceding the annexation process. 

 

Furthermore, the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, finds and determines the 

nature of the area is characteristically different from other developed areas within the corporate 

limits of the City of Navasota, Texas. Consequently, because of the differing characteristics of 

topography, land use and population density, the service levels which may ultimately be 

provided in the newly annexed area may differ somewhat from services provided to other areas 

of the City of Navasota, Texas. These differences are specifically dictated because of differing 

characteristics of the property and the City of Navasota, Texas, will undertake to perform 



 
 4. 

consistent with this service plan so as to provide this newly annexed area with the same type, 

kind and quality of service presently enjoyed by the citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, who 

reside in areas of similar topography, land use and population density. 

 

APPROVED on this the 9th day of August 2021. 

 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 

 

 

LAND OWNER 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Paul Hammock 



ORDINANCE NO. 973-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 13 UTILITIES, ARTICLE 
13.02 RATES, CHARGES AND COSTS, Sec. 13.02.011     
EXTENSION OF MAIN LINES AND SERVICE LINES, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY AND REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 
has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good government, peace 
and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Utility Ordinance (“Utilities Ordinance”) includes provisions 
outlining extension of city utility mains; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend utility main regulations requiring a 
warranty on public improvements dedicated to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best interest of 
the City to adopt the amended regulations as set forth herein; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS  
 
Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Sec. 13.02.011 Extension 
of Main Lines and Service Lines, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas is 
hereby amended by adding subsection (e) to read as follows: 
 
(e) Where the installation of public improvements is required, the 
applicant/subdivider/owner shall warrant that all required public improvements will be 
free from defect in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) year following 



the date of acceptance by the City of the dedication of the last completed public 
improvement. 
 
SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the United 
States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as hereafter 
amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this 
Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, which 
are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of 
the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City whether codified or 
uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 
 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be considered by 
the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with applicable law, prior 
to the time designated for meeting.  
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING ON THIS 23RD DAY OF AUGUST, 2021. 
 
 
                    ____________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 



________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
                  
 
                                                             ____________________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ORDINANCE NO. 974-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 14 ZONING, EXHIBIT A 
ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE XXI BUILDING PERMITS, 
CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY AND CERTIFICATES OF 
COMPLIANCE, 21.5 SITE PLAN PROCESS, C-6. SITE PLAN 
STANDARDS OF APPROVAL, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY 
OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY AND 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 
has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good government, peace 
and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) includes 
provisions outlining site plan standards of approval; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend site plan regulations regarding public 
improvements in the Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, all notification and public hearing requirements have been satisfied 
in accordance with state law and the City’s Code of Ordinances; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best interest of 
the City to adopt the amended regulations as set forth herein; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS  
 
Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates 
of Occupancy and Certificates Of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, C-6. Site Plan 



Standards of Approval, (b) Approval Criteria, of the Code of Ordinances, City of 
Navasota, Texas is hereby amended by adding subsection (10) to read as follows: 
 
10) Where the installation of public improvements is required, the 
applicant/developer/owner shall warrant that all required public improvements will be 
free from defect in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) year following 
the date of acceptance by the City of the dedication of the last completed public 
improvement. 
 
SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the United 
States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as hereafter 
amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this 
Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, which 
are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of 
the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City whether codified or 
uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 
 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be considered by 
the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with applicable law, prior 
to the time designated for meeting.  
 

 
 
 



 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING ON THIS 23RD DAY OF AUGUST, 2021. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
                  
 
                                                             ______________________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 18. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session:  The City Council will meet in Executive
Session as permitted by Section 551.074, Texas Government
Code - Personnel Matters - Discussion concerning the retiring City
Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues, and
potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating
the transition to a new City Manager. 
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting the Executive Session.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. City Manager's Employment Agreement

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631117055x_at.pdf


















ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 19. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Reconvene in open session.  
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is ___________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 20. AGENDA DATE: September 13,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action concerning the retiring
City Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues, and
potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating
the transition to a new City Manager.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR
2. MUNICIPAL COURT REPORT FOR 08/31/2021

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631282841x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1631202476x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 08/30/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Railroad Street Drainage Project Update; (b) Update on Capital  
    Improvements Project; (c) Arts Council Quarterly Report; (d) Proclamation – National Gear  
    Up Week; (e) Board and Commission update; and (f) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Christian Community Center Budget Request 
6.  Public hearing on Food Truck Park 
7. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 977-21, specific use permit – food truck – 1106 W. Washington 
8. Gas model agreement 
9. Hollister GRS Replacement agreement 
10.Public hearing on proposed budget for FY 2021-2022 
11.1st reading of Ordinance No. 975-21, approving budget for FY 2021/2022 
12.Public hearing on proposed tax rate for FY 2021-2022 
13.1st reading of Ordinance No. 976-21, approving tax rate for FY 2021/2022 
14.Ratify tax rate for FY 2021-2022 
15.Purchase ad in the Insight magazine with HOT funds 
16.Tax Assessment/Collection agreement 
17.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of August 2021; (b) Expenditures for the  
    month of August 2021; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 972-21, approving voluntary  
    annexation for Hammock; (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 973-21, warranty regulations  
    on main lines and service lines; and (e) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 974-21, site plan  
    approval process 
18.Executive Session: City Manager’s retirement, employment agreement and related issues 
19.Reconvene in open session 
20.Action on Executive Session 
21.Adjourn 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 09/13/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Pretty City Committee update; (b) Update on Capital Improvements Project;  
   (c) Proclamation – National Night Out; (d) Board and Commission update; and (e) Reports  
   from staff and City Council 
5. Warehouse seal proposal alternative delivery method 
6. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 975-21, approving budget for FY 2021/2022 
7. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 976-21, approving tax rate for FY 2021/2022 
8. Ratify tax increase for FY 2021-2022 
9. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 977-21, specific use permit – food truck – 1106 W. Washington 
10.Interlocal agreement with the County/Navasota Fire Department for fire services 
11.1st reading of Ordinance No. _______, denying Entergy rate increase 
12.Christmas Holiday schedule 
13.Adjourn 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

OCTOBER 11, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 09/27/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Pretty City Committee update; (b) Update on Capital Improvements Project;  
    (c) Board and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of September 2021; (b) Expenditures for  
    the month of September 2021; and (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _______, denying  
    Entergy rate increase 
6. Adjourn 



                                    O F F I C E   O F   C O U R T   A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

                                             T E X A S   J U D I C A L   C O U N C I L

                                              Official Municipal Court Monthly Report

                     Month   August              Year   2021

           Municipal Court for the City of  NAVASOTA

           Presiding Judge   PATRICIA GRUNER

                      If new, date assumed office _________________

     Court Mailing Address   200 E. MCALPINE

                      City   NAVASOTA, TXZip    77868

              Phone Number   936-825-6268

                Fax Number   936-825-7280

      Court's Public Email   RJESSIE@NAVASOTATX.GOV

           Court's Website   http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV

 

   THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE RECORDS OF THIS COURT.

   Prepared by _________________________________________________________________

          Date _____________________    Phone: (936) 825-6268

  PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 20 DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF THE MONTH REPORTED TO:

                         OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

                                 P.O. BOX 12066

                                   AUSTIN, TX

                                   78711-2066

                             PHONE: (512) 463-1625

                              Fax: (512) 936-2423

http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV


 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    1

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  August      YEAR  2021                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

1. Total Cases Pending First of Month:                     |        437|          0|         16|        251|         39|         89|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Active Cases                                         |         67|          0|          0|         16|         21|          9|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Inactive Cases                                       |        370|          0|         16|        235|         18|         80|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

2. New Cases Filed                                         |          9|          0|          0|         16|          1|          5|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

3. Cases Reactivated                                       |          5|          0|          0|          2|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

4. All Other Cases Added                                   |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

5. Total Cases on Docket                                   |         81|          0|          0|         34|         22|         14|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial:        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Uncontested Dispositions                             |          8|          0|          0|          0|          0|          1|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

7. Dispositions at Trial:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Convictions:                                         |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere                     |          9|          0|          0|         11|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     3) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Acquittals:                                          |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  August      YEAR  2021                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

8. Compliance Dismissals:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. After Driver Safety Course                           |          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. After Deferred Disposition                           |          3|          0|          0|          0|          1|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. After Teen Court                                     |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   d. After Tobacco Awareness Course                       |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   e. After Treatment for Chemical Dependency              |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   f. After Proof of Financial Responsibility              |          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   g. All Other Transportation Code Dismissals             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

9. All Other Dispositions                                  |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

10. Total Cases Disposed                                   |         20|          0|          0|         11|          1|          1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |         12|          0|          0|          8|          3|          2|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

12. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |        426|          0|         16|        256|         39|         93|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |         49|          0|          0|         15|         18|         11|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |        377|          0|         16|        241|         21|         82|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

13. Show Cause Hearings Held                               |          8|          0|          0|          2|          0|          1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

14. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. After Trial                                         |          1|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |                |

MONTH  August      YEAR  2021                              |  TOTAL CASES   |

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

1.  Total Cases Pending First of Month:                    |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

2.  New Cases Filed                                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

3.  Cases Reactivated                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

4.  All Other Cases Added                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

5.  Total Cases on Docket                                  |               1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

6.  Uncontested Civil Fines or Penalties                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

7.  Default Judgments                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

8.  Agreed Judgments                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

9.  Trial/Hearing by Judge/Hearing Officer                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

10. Trial by Jury                                          |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

11. Dismissed for Want of Prosecution                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

12. All Other Dispositions                                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

13. Total Cases Disposed                                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

14. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

15. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

16. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. After Trial                                         |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

JUVENILE/MINOR ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                  |                |

MONTH  August      YEAR  2021                                                    |     TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

1. Transportation Code Cases Filed                                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

2. Non-driving Alcoholic Beverage Code Cases Filed                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

3. Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol Cases Filed                            |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

4. Drug Paraphernalia Cases Filed                                                |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

5. Tobacco Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

6. Truancy Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

7. Education Code (Except Failure to Attend) Cases Filed                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

8. Violation of Local Daytime Curfew Ordinance Cases Filed                       |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

9. All Other Non-traffic Fine-only Cases Filed                                   |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

10. Transfer to Juvenile Court:                                                  |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Mandatory Transfer                                                          |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Discretionary Transfer                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

11. Accused of Contempt and Referred to Juvenile Court (Delinquent Conduct)      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

12. Held in Contempt by Criminal Court (Fined and/or Denied Driving Privileges)  |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

13. Juvenile Statement Magistrate Warning:                                       |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Warnings Administered                                                       |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Statements Certified                                                        |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

14. Detention Hearings Held                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

15. Orders for Non-secure Custody Issued                                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

16. Parent Contributing to Nonattendance Cases Filed                             |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                   |                | NUMBER REQUESTS |

MONTH  August      YEAR  2021                                                     |  NUMBER GIVEN  |   FOR COUNSEL   |

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

1. Magistrate Warnings:                                                           |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                         |               9|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                   |               0|                0|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                     |               0|                0|

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

2. Arrest Warrants Issued:                                                                         |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                                          |               25|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                                    |                1|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                                      |                4|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

3. Capiases Pro Fine Issued                                                                        |               10|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

4. Search Warrants Issued                                                                          |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed                                            |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

6. Examining Trials Conducted                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

7. Emergency Mental Health Hearings Held                                                           |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

8. Magistrate's Order for Emergency Protection Issued                                              |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

9. Magistrate's Orders for Ignition Interlock Device Issued                                        |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

10. All Other Magistrates's Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond                 |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

11. Drivers's License Denial, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held                               |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held                                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

13. Peace Bond Hearings Held                                                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    6

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

14. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Community Service:                            |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Partial Satisfaction                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Full Satisfaction                                                                             |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Jail Credit                                   |               18|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

16. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                       |                2|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                           |          $668.00|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:                                                |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Kept by City                                                                                  |        $2,981.10|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Remitted to State                                                                             |        $1,526.60|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Total                                                                                         |        $4,507.70|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 9/09/2021 09:24 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    7

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

Run By:             rjessie

Report Type:        Summary

Date Range:          8/01/2021 -  8/31/2021

Finalize Report:    Yes

Correction:         No

      *** END OF REPORT ***


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Railroad Street Drainage project update;
(b) Capital Improvements Project Report;
(c) Arts Council Quarterly report;
(d) Proclamation - National Gear Up Week;
(e) Board and Commission update; and
(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Arts Council Quarterly Report
	 Proclamation

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on request from Christian Community Services for assistance with utility payments for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
	 Christian Community Services Request
	 Christian Community Services Utility Bills

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and testimony regarding a specific use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.
	 Staff Report
	 Application
	 Elevations
	 Survey
	 Site Layout

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 977-21, approving a specific use permit application submitted to the City of Navasota by Christopher Komarzec for the property located at 1102 West Washington Ave, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. The specific use permit application requests to allow for the development of a Food Truck Park, a use not listed under Article XI B-1: General Business District. The property affected is legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 19, Par 12.
	 Ordinance No. 977-21

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on engineering agreement with Strand Associates for the 2021 Gas System Model Development.
	 Gas Model

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of engineering agreement with Strand Associates for the 2021 Hollister Gas Regulator Station Replacement Project.
	 Hollister Gas Regulastor

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Public Hearing on the proposed budget for the City of Navasota for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
	 Proposed Budget

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 975-21, adopting the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022.
	 Ordinance No. 975-21

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Public Hearing on proposal to increase the tax rate for 2021.
.
	 Tax Calculation
	 GCAD Certification

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 976-21, levying taxes for the City of Navasota and establishing the rate of taxation and the percentage of actual value of the property taxes to be used for and during the 2021 tax year.
	 Ordinance No. 976-21

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on ratifying the tax increase reflected in the budget for FY 2021-2022.
	Agenda Item No. 15 -  Consideration and possible action on purchasing an ad in the Insight Magazine using Hotel/Motel funds.
	 Insight Magazine Ad Info

	Agenda Item No. 16 -  Consideration and possible action on the Assessment/Collection contract for the taxing year 2021 with the Grimes County Central Appraisal District.
	 2022 Tax Assessment Collection Contract GCAD

	Agenda Item No. 17 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of August 2021;
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of August 2021;
C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 972-21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by Paul Hammock for a 42.381-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas;
D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 973-21, amending Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.02 Rates, Charges and Costs, Section 13.02.011 Extension of Main Lines and Service Lines, of the code of ordinances, City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, for the purpose of adopting warranty regulations on public improvements dedicated to the City; and
E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 974-21, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article II Districts, District Boundaries, Official Zoning Map, New Uses, and Compliance, 2.5 Compliance Required, of the code of ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, adding public improvement warranty provisions.







	 Minutes - 08/09/2021
	 Minutes - 08/10/2021 - Special
	 Minutes - 08/23/2021
	 Minutes - 08/30/2021 - Special
	 Expenditures for August 2021
	 Ordinance No. 972-21
	 Ordinance No. 973-21
	 Ordinance No. 974-21

	Agenda Item No. 18 -  Executive Session:  The City Council will meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.074, Texas Government Code - Personnel Matters - Discussion concerning the retiring City Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues, and potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating the transition to a new City Manager. 
	 City Manager's Employment Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 19 -  Reconvene in open session.  
	Agenda Item No. 20 -  Consideration and possible action concerning the retiring City Manager's Employment Agreement and related issues, and potential roles/duties of the retiring City Manager in facilitating the transition to a new City Manager.
	Agenda Item No. 21 -  1. Planning Calendar
	 Planning Calendar
	 Municipal Court Report for 08/31/2021


	DateRow1: 4/15/21
4/30/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row1: Check #3101
Check #3144
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow1: KVMK Maverick (to Temple)
	Total Payment AmountRow1: $1,040
$300
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow1: $1,340
	Funded by which cityRow1: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow1: 0
	DateRow2: 4/15/21
4/30/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row2: Check #3101
Check #3144
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow2: WTAW Radio (to Round Rock)
	Total Payment AmountRow2: $1,050
$280
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow2: $1,330
	Funded by which cityRow2: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow2: 0
	DateRow3: 4/15/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row3: Check #3101
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow3: WTAW Online > 75 Miles
	Total Payment AmountRow3: $334
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow3: $334
	Funded by which cityRow3: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow3: 0
	DateRow4: 5/3/21
5/5/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row4: Check #3132
Check #3136
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow4: Taylor Newspaper
	Total Payment AmountRow4: $200
$200
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow4: $400
	Funded by which cityRow4: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow4: 0
	DateRow5: 5/3/21
5/5/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row5: Check #3130
Check #3136
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow5: Columbus Newspaper
	Total Payment AmountRow5: $196.88
$196.88
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow5: $291
	Funded by which cityRow5: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow5: 0
	DateRow6: 5/3/21
5/5/21
	Payment Method Include Check Row6: Check #3132
Check #3136
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow6: Elgin Newspaper
	Total Payment AmountRow6: $200
$200
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow6: $400
	Funded by which cityRow6: Navasota
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow6: 0
	DateRow7: 
	Payment Method Include Check Row7: 
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow7: 
	Total Payment AmountRow7: 
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow7: 
	Funded by which cityRow7: 
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow7: 
	DateRow8: 
	Payment Method Include Check Row8: 
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow8: 
	Total Payment AmountRow8: 
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow8: 
	Funded by which cityRow8: 
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow8: 
	DateRow9: 
	Payment Method Include Check Row9: 
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow9: 
	Total Payment AmountRow9: 
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow9: 
	Funded by which cityRow9: 
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow9: 
	DateRow10: 
	Payment Method Include Check Row10: 
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow10: 
	Total Payment AmountRow10: 
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow10: 
	Funded by which cityRow10: 
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow10: 
	DateRow11: 
	Payment Method Include Check Row11: 
	Payee must match approved items on contract for grantfunded itemsRow11: 
	Total Payment AmountRow11: 
	Amount Attributed to GrantRow11: 
	Funded by which cityRow11: 
	Amount Attributed to MatchingRow11: 


